
1. Call to Order 
 

2. Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  

 



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Notice of Meeting 

Monday, August 14, 2023, at 8:30 AM 

32825 Co Rd 39, Lucerne, CO 80646 

THE BOARD MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC IN PERSON AND BY 
TELECONFERENCE 

Information to join by Phone is below: 

Call-In Number: 1(720)707-2699, Meeting ID: 873 5785 0771, Passcode: 475314 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  
 

3. Action: Approve August 14, 2023, NWCWD Board Meeting Agenda 
 

4. Public Comment (3 Minute Time Limit; Items Not Otherwise on the Agenda)  
 

5. Consent Agenda: (These items are considered to be routine and will be approved 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
requested, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in the Regular Agenda) (enclosures) 

a. Minutes from July 17, 2023, Meetings 
b. Unaudited Financials for July 2023 
c. Invoices through August 14, 2023  
d. Greeley and NW Harmony Interconnect Pump Station Purchase Contract 
e. Element WSSC Change Case No.1 Task Order No. 4  
f. Stantec Master Plan Change Order 1  
g. Honey Creek Resources Cost of Service and Finance Model Update Scope 
h. Ditesco Services Scope of Services NEWT III Construction Management  
i. BPCCC Variance Request  

i. Rest Stop Storage 
j. Easement Agreements 

i.  Overland Ponds Mark Linder Pond 1 
ii. AB Property – NEWT III  

k. Nickel Road Mineral Lease Agreement  

 

6. Discussion: Town Mayor and Manager for the Town of Eaton Discussion on 
Future Water Service in Relation to 2nd Treatment Plant and NWCWD  

 

7. Action: Consider Approval for Variance Request Related to Development Review 
for the Ridge Commercial Development  
 
 



 
 
 

8. Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to enter into Executive Session for 
the following purposes: Receiving legal advice and discussing matters subject to 
negotiation and strategy pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e), C.R.S. related to The 
Ridge Commercial Development  
 

 
9. District Manager’s Report: (enclosures) 

a. Tap Sales 
b. Audit Extension Filed – September 30, 2023  
c. SDA Annual Meeting - September 12 – 14  
d. Thornton Northern Properties Stewardship Plan (NPSP) August 14, 2023  
e. Notices Sent to NEWT III alignment property owners.  
f. Leak on 18” Distribution Line from Tank 1  
g. System and CIP Map and 2023 Budget Memo  
h. Master Plan and Water Service Agreement Work Sessions 
i. City of Fort Collins Change in Water Requirements and Excess Water Usage 

Charges  
 

10. Other Business  
 

 
ADJOURN   P.M. 

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/3qhCC2kAQptVpk4in1YiQ?domain=thorntonco.gov


 July 17, 2023, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 1 

 MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 Held: Monday, the 17th day of July, 2023, at 8:30 A.M.   

 

 The meeting was conducted via teleconference. 

 

ATTENDANCE The meeting was held in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Colorado. The following directors were in attendance: 

 

 Tad Stout, President 

Scott Cockroft, Secretary 

Nels Nelson, Treasurer 

Anne Hennen, Assistant Secretary 

 

Matthew Pettinger was absent and excused. 

 

 Also present were Eric Reckentine, General Manager of the 

District; Zachary P. White, Esq., WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA 

& WALDRON, District general counsel; Braden Peterson, Town of 

Severance; Keith Meyer, Ditesco; Erin Tolooee, BDO; Kris 

Pickett, Severance South; John Holdren, and Todd Bean. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

MATTERS 

 

 

Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 8:30 A.M. 

 

Declaration of Quorum and 

Confirmation of Director 

Qualifications 

 

Mr. Stout noted that a quorum for the Board was present and that 

the directors had confirmed their qualification to serve. 

  

Reaffirmation of Disclosures 

of Potential or Existing 

Conflicts of Interest 

Mr. White advised the Board that, pursuant to Colorado law, 

certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action 

at the meeting. Mr. White reported that disclosures for those 

directors that provided WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & 

WALDRON with notice of potential or existing conflicts of interest, 

if any, were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the 

Board at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with 

Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the 

Board. Mr. White inquired into whether members of the Board 

had any additional disclosures of potential or existing conflicts of 

interest about any matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. 

All directors reviewed the agenda for the meeting and confirmed 

that they have no additional conflicts of interest in connection with 

any of the matters listed on the agenda.  

 



 June 12, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 2 

Approval of Agenda Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the agenda for the 

meeting.  Upon motion of Mr. Cockroft, seconded by Mr. Nelson, 

the Board unanimously approved the agenda as amended to add 

WAPA Access Agreements and Thornton Recharge Letter 

Agreement. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

No members of the public addressed the Board. 

 

Mr. Reckentine spoke on the record regarding past 

communications with the Town of Severance and 

miscommunications and misinformation distributed by the Town 

of Severance regarding negotiations to purchase 50 plant 

investments.  No such negotiations have occurred.  Mr. 

Reckentine read a letter sent by the District to the Town of 

Severance in February attached hereto as Attachment 1 and read 

correspondence from the Town liaison regarding master planning 

efforts attached hereto as Attachment 2. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MATTERS 

Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the consent agenda 

items. 

 

Upon motion of Mr. Cockroft, seconded by Mr. Nelson, the Board 

approved the following: 

a. Minutes from June 12, 2023, Meetings 

b. Unaudited Financials for June 2023 

c. Invoices through July 17, 2023  

d. Easement and Access Agreements  

i. City of Thornton Letter Agreement – Recharge Site 

Access 

ii. Jacobs – NEWT III (ratify) 

iii. Highway 84 Replacement Project  

iv. Possession and Use Agreements  

1. DyeCrest Dairy - NEWT III 

2. Greeley and NWCWD Interconnect 

 

Consider Approval of the 

NWCWD 2022 Financial 

Audit Conducted by BDO 

Ms. Tolooee from BDO presented the District 2022 audit report.  

The District will receive a clean, unmodified opinion from BDO.  

Notwithstanding, deficiencies and necessary controls were 

discussed with the Board. 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported that the District 3rd party accounting firm 

has not performed as expected in the last year and he will begin 

looking for a new accounting firm. 

 

Upon motion of Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Hennen, the Board 

unanimously accepted the 2022 audit. 



 June 12, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 3 

Consider Approval Garney 

Construction NEWT III GMP 

and Contract Amendment 

Mr. Meyer presented to the Board regarding the proposed 

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the NEWT III project.  He 

reported plans are at 100%.  He reported regarding Change Order 

1 to the contract, which was already approved to procure pipeline, 

and presented Change Order 2 which includes the GMP in the 

amount of $22,101,515.  The District’s portion will be 70%. 

 

Upon motion of Mr. Cockroft, seconded by Ms. Hennen, the 

Board unanimously accepted the GMP and approved Change 

Order 2. 

 

Consider Approval SCWTA 

Creation Agreement 2nd 

Amendment 

Mr. Reckentine reported to the Board regarding the history of the 

formation of the SCWTA and various amendments to the 

establishment agreement.  Currently a 2nd Amendment is being 

discussed to add infrastructure to the defined terms under the 

agreement.  Mr. Reckentine reported that additional work is 

necessary and will bring the agreement back to the Board when 

ready for approval. 

 

Consider Approval of 

Variance Request for 

WinDance aka Severance 

South Subdivision 

 

Mr. Pickett addressed the Board regarding a request for a variance 

to use the District’s 20-foot easement to install a water line 

necessary for the Win Dance development.  The District has 

already granted a variance to allow a 12-inch water line in the 

District’s easement.  Mr. Pickett is proposing to up-size his water 

line to also include the necessary flow for the 12-inch water line. 

 

Mr. Reckentine discussed a preference to see the waterline in a 

separate easement to allow for easier maintenance.  Mr. 

Reckentine suggested asking for a 20-foot easement from Xcel, 

and 10-feet from the District to achieve a 30-foot easement. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

Executive Session: The 

Board reserves the right to 

enter into Executive Session 

for the following purposes: 

Receiving legal advice and 

discussing matters subject to 

negotiation and strategy 

pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) 

& (e), C.R.S. related to 

Variance Request for 

WinDance aka Severance 

South Subdivision 

 

None. 

DISTRICT MANAGER’S 

REPORT 

 



 June 12, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 4 

Tap Sales Mr. Reckentine reported that 105 taps have been sold to date and 

that there are 45 more expected to be sold by the end of the year. 

 

Severance CORA Request Mr. Reckentine reported that a CORA request was received from 

the Town of Severance and the District responded. 

 

Larimer County Flood Plain 

Permit Approved for NEWT 

III Pipeline Project 

Mr. Reckentine reported that the Flood Plain Permit for NEWT 

III was approved by Larimer County. 

Northern Colorado Water 

Alliance 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported that the Norther Colorado Water 

Alliance is asking the District to stay in for 2024 and requested 

$2,500 from the District.  Mr. Reckentine reported this was in the 

budget and planned. 

 

CDL LICENSES 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported to the Board regarding difficulty 

retaining drivers with CDL’s.  The District has helped with the 

training cost in the past for drivers and then they leave as soon as 

they are licensed.  Mr. Reckentine discussed with the Board 

employment agreements requiring individuals to reimburse the 

District for the cost of training of they leave the District within a 

defined period of time.  The Board directed preparation of the 

agreements. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS  

Consider Approval of WAPA 

Applications  

 

Mr. Reckentine reported regarding the WAPA applications to the 

Board. Upon motion of Ms. Hennen, seconded by Mr. Cockroft, 

the Board unanimously approved the applications. 

 

Consider Approval of 

Thornton Recharge 

Agreement 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported regarding a Thornton Recharge 

Agreement to the Board. Upon motion of Ms. Hennen, seconded 

by Mr. Cockroft, the Board unanimously approved the agreement. 

 

 Ms. Hennen addressed the Board and Staff regarding a desire for 

the District to adopt an attitude of cooperation when working with 

customers and Towns. 

 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to be conducted, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

 The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes 

of the above-referenced meeting 

 

 

               

     Secretary for the District 

 

 

 



 June 12, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

32825 CR 39  •  LUCERNE, CO 80646 

P.O. BOX 56  •  BUS: 970-356-3020  •  FAX: 970-395-0997 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG  •  EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 

February 21, 2023 
 

VIA EMAIL 

Town Council, Town of Severance 
c/o Nicholas Wharton, Town Manager 
3 S. Timber Ridge Parkway 

Severance, CO 80550 
nwharton@townofseverance.org 
 

RE:  North Weld County Water District and Town of Severance Cooperation 

 
Dear Town of Severance Council,  

 
North Weld County Water District (the “District”) has had several meetings with the Town 

of Severance representatives that included the Mayor, Town Council and District board 
representatives, and management from both organizations in relation to regional master 
planning, collaborative efforts moving forward, mutual understandings, and other issues.  The 
District’s understanding was that meetings were intended to provide a platform to understand 

concerns and to work together in a cooperative manner. The District reviewed the latest “Council 
Corner” statement sent to the residents of the Town as part of its February 2023 newsletter and 
believes it is important to clear up some statements made pertaining to the District position on 
future growth and how the Town understands the communications made during our group 

meetings.    
 
The District wants to remind and bring to the Town’s attention that the District has 

informed the Town on several occasions that it does not know when or if it will be able to sell 

additional plant investments to serve new developments in the Town. The master planning effort 
described in the Town’s statement is the first step.   The process will include the Town as a 
stakeholder in the master planning effort. Following the master planning effort, future capacity 
sales and future capacity caps will be incorporated in a revised water service agreement with the 

Town dependent on the master planning results and if approved by the District’s Board of 
Directors. The model of unlimited plant investment purchases is not sustainable by any identity 
based on our area's dramatic growth and long-term drought challenges. The District has been 
working with and discussing with the Town for many years the Cost of Service to provide for 

future growth and has concerns with the gap between future town treatment projects to manage 
future growth and District’s ability to serve the region’s growth demands.  

 
Please be reminded as before that should the Town approve any new developments, the 

District cannot guarantee that water service will be available to serve them at any point in the 

http://www.nwcwd.org/
mailto:WATER@NWCWD.ORG


  

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

32825 CR 39  •  LUCERNE, CO 80646 

P.O. BOX 56  •  BUS: 970-356-3020  •  FAX: 970-395-0997 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG  •  EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 

future. The District would like to and hopefully move forward in a collaborative manner with 
mutual respect shown between parties in the future. 

 
Sincerely,  
 
 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
Cc: Keith Martin, Town Attorney 

Eric Reckentine

http://www.nwcwd.org/
mailto:WATER@NWCWD.ORG


 June 12, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 



  

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

32825 CR 39  •  LUCERNE, CO 80646 

P.O. BOX 56  •  BUS: 970-356-3020  •  FAX: 970-395-0997 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG  •  EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 

February 21, 2023 
 

VIA EMAIL 

Town Council, Town of Severance 
c/o Nicholas Wharton, Town Manager 
3 S. Timber Ridge Parkway 

Severance, CO 80550 
nwharton@townofseverance.org 
 

RE:  North Weld County Water District and Town of Severance Cooperation 

 
Dear Town of Severance Council,  

 
North Weld County Water District (the “District”) has had several meetings with the Town 

of Severance representatives that included the Mayor, Town Council and District board 
representatives, and management from both organizations in relation to regional master 
planning, collaborative efforts moving forward, mutual understandings, and other issues.  The 
District’s understanding was that meetings were intended to provide a platform to understand 

concerns and to work together in a cooperative manner. The District reviewed the latest “Council 
Corner” statement sent to the residents of the Town as part of its February 2023 newsletter and 
believes it is important to clear up some statements made pertaining to the District position on 
future growth and how the Town understands the communications made during our group 

meetings.    
 
The District wants to remind and bring to the Town’s attention that the District has 

informed the Town on several occasions that it does not know when or if it will be able to sell 

additional plant investments to serve new developments in the Town. The master planning effort 
described in the Town’s statement is the first step.   The process will include the Town as a 
stakeholder in the master planning effort. Following the master planning effort, future capacity 
sales and future capacity caps will be incorporated in a revised water service agreement with the 

Town dependent on the master planning results and if approved by the District’s Board of 
Directors. The model of unlimited plant investment purchases is not sustainable by any identity 
based on our area's dramatic growth and long-term drought challenges. The District has been 
working with and discussing with the Town for many years the Cost of Service to provide for 

future growth and has concerns with the gap between future town treatment projects to manage 
future growth and District’s ability to serve the region’s growth demands.  

 
Please be reminded as before that should the Town approve any new developments, the 

District cannot guarantee that water service will be available to serve them at any point in the 

http://www.nwcwd.org/
mailto:WATER@NWCWD.ORG


  

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

32825 CR 39  •  LUCERNE, CO 80646 

P.O. BOX 56  •  BUS: 970-356-3020  •  FAX: 970-395-0997 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG  •  EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 

future. The District would like to and hopefully move forward in a collaborative manner with 
mutual respect shown between parties in the future. 

 
Sincerely,  
 
 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
Cc: Keith Martin, Town Attorney 

Eric Reckentine

http://www.nwcwd.org/
mailto:WATER@NWCWD.ORG


NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
July 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
1014 - BANK OF COLORADO $ 6,030,081.61
1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL 10,806,403.11
1017 - COLO TRUST- RRR 265,563.25
1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND 2,236,344.64
1020 - COLO TRUST - 2022 BOND 39,432,413.56
1030 - CASH DRAWER 200.00
1035 - CONTRA CASH RESERVE (1,705,883.00)
1050 - CASH RESERVE (CWRPDA) 1,705,883.00
1100 - AR WATER (DRIP) 2,108,109.97
1105 - AR CONSTRUCTION METERS 55,886.36
1116 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 36,786.65
1230 - PREPAID INSURANCE 32,294.54
1300 - INVENTORY 1,904,723.57

Total Current Assets 62,908,807.26

Property and Equipment
1220 - LAND BUILDING SITE 541,875.18
1222 - CSU DRYING BEDS 28,612.00
1225 - LAND & EASEMENTS 2,577,384.19
1405 - WATER RIGHTS OWNED 95,122,451.44
1407 - WATER STORAGE 6,155,513.62
1415 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,389,048.51
1416 - DEPREC -  MACH & EQUIP (1,822,316.91)
1420 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 52,720.33
1421 - DEPREC - OFFICE EQUIP (52,720.11)
1425 - PIPELINES 74,192,485.87
1426 - DEPREC - PIPELINES (25,088,803.91)
1430 - STORAGE TANKS 2,689,338.13
1431 - DEPREC - STORAGE TANKS (1,545,497.07)
1432 - MASTER METERS 689,854.53
1433 - DEPREC MASTER METERS (54,718.43)
1435 - PUMP STATIONS 5,687,716.34
1436 - DEPREC -  PUMP STATIONS (2,619,270.54)
1437 - FILL STATION 15,555.00
1438 - DEPREC - FILL STATION (3,888.75)
1440 - PAVING 25,500.20
1441 - DEPREC - PAVING (25,499.80)
1445 - OFFICE BUILDING 1,667,567.41
1446 - DEPREC - BUILDING (526,487.01)
1454 - CONSTRUCT IN PROGRESS 22,713.40

Total Property and Equipment 160,119,133.62

Other Assets
1457 - FILTER PLANT EQUITY 22,849,610.70
1464 - BOND INSURANCE 1,841.00
1466 - Bond Cst of Issue '19 188,070.00

Total Other Assets 23,039,521.70

Total Assets $ 246,067,462.58

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
2215 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLES $ 37,673.74
2216 - CONST MTR DEPOSITS 127,424.94

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
July 31, 2023

2230 - ACCRUED WAGES 118,253.00
2231 - ACCRUED COMP ABSENCES 150,013.12
2232 - ACCRUED INTEREST 117,662.50

Total Current Liabilities 551,027.30

Long-Term Liabilities
2220 - CURT PRT/ LONGTERM DEBT 5,000.00
2221 - 2012 BONDS PAYABLE 3,090,000.00
2222 - 2019 Bond Payable 16,160,000.00
2223 - Bond  Premium '19 777,042.00
2224 - 2020 BOND PAYABLE 3,450,000.00
2228 - NET PREM/DISCT '12 BOND 26,465.00
2229 - PREMIUM ON 2009A LOAN 52,732.00

Total Long-Term Liabilities 23,561,239.00

Total Liabilities 24,112,266.30

Capital
2800 - RETAINED EARNINGS 228,137,022.20
Net Income (6,181,825.92)

Total Capital 221,955,196.28

Total Liabilities & Capital $ 246,067,462.58

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

REVENUES
3110 - METERED SALES $ 1,265,947.98 $ 6,745,096.37 $ 12,215,468.00 5,470,371.63 55.22
3111 - WATER ALLOC SURCHARGE 487,314.00 2,882,382.00 3,490,134.00 607,752.00 82.59
3112 - PLANT INVEST SURCHARGE 344,293.85 1,668,152.15 2,268,587.00 600,434.85 73.53
3113 - ADJUSTMENTS (42,241.18) (69,441.74) 0.00 69,441.74 0.00
3140 - CONST METER USAGE 13,590.80 108,497.54 209,100.00 100,602.46 51.89
3141 - CONSTR METER RENTAL 1,205.00 8,695.00 5,610.00 (3,085.00) 154.99
3142 - CONSTRUCT METER REPAIR 3,922.45 14,413.50 560.00 (13,853.50) 2,573.84

OPERATING 2,074,032.90 11,357,794.82 18,189,459.00 6,831,664.18 62.44

3210 INTEREST-COTRUST-GENERAL 221,682.17 1,461,829.79 130,384.00 (1,331,445.79) 1,121.17
3220 - PORT PARTONAGE AGFINITY 1,084.09 1,739.02 828.00 (911.02) 210.03

NON OPERATING 222,766.26 1,463,568.81 131,212.00 (1,332,356.81) 1,115.42

3310 - TAP (PI) FEES 526,500.00 2,061,750.00 3,000,000.00 938,250.00 68.73
3311 - DISTANCE FEES 54,000.00 229,050.00 176,653.00 (52,397.00) 129.66
3312 - WATER (ALLOCATION) FEE 36,750.00 114,750.00 300,000.00 185,250.00 38.25
3314 - INSTALLATION FEES 56,700.00 227,600.00 331,224.00 103,624.00 68.71
3315 - METER  RELOCATION FEE 0.00 4,400.00 1,656.00 (2,744.00) 265.70
3316 - LINE EXTENSION FEE 0.00 0.00 153,000.00 153,000.00 0.00
3320 - NON-POTABLE TAP FEE 8,000.00 13,000.00 49,684.00 36,684.00 26.17
3321 - NON-POTABLE INSTALL 25,205.00 30,405.00 22,082.00 (8,323.00) 137.69
3330 - COMMITMENT LETTER FEE 0.00 0.00 828.00 828.00 0.00
3331 - REVIEW FEE 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
3340 - INSPECTION FEE 0.00 0.00 137,077.00 137,077.00 0.00

NEW SERVICE 707,155.00 2,680,955.00 4,174,964.00 1,494,009.00 64.22

3410 - WATER RENTAL 0.00 15,898.50 18,207.00 2,308.50 87.32

AG WATER 0.00 15,898.50 18,207.00 2,308.50 87.32

3500 - MISCELLANEOUS 11,218.19 50,461.23 0.00 (50,461.23) 0.00
3510 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 9,937.00 9,937.00 0.00
3520 - TRANSFER FEES 825.00 4,000.00 5,520.00 1,520.00 72.46
3530 - RISE TOWER RENT 300.00 2,100.00 8,060.00 5,960.00 26.05
3540 - SAFETY GRANT (CSD) 0.00 0.00 12,145.00 12,145.00 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 12,343.19 56,561.23 35,662.00 (20,899.23) 158.60

3600 - FARM INCOME 0.00 0.00 (9,385.00) (9,385.00) 0.00
3610 - MINERAL/OIL/GAS RIGHTS (166.33) (132,085.33) (64,946.00) 67,139.33 203.38
3640 - EQUIPMENT/VEHICLE SALE 0.00 0.00 (552.00) (552.00) 0.00

FARM INCOME 166.33 132,085.33 74,883.00 (57,202.33) 176.39

DEBT PROCEEDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 2

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

TOTAL REVENUES 3,016,463.68 15,706,863.69 22,624,387.00 6,917,523.31 69.42

OPERATING EXPENSE
4110 - POTABLE WATER 318.13 1,558,654.82 3,224,486.36 1,665,831.54 48.34
4120 - RENTAL WATER 0.00 (11,375.00) 0.00 11,375.00 0.00
4130 - CARRYOVER 0.00 0.00 91,239.03 91,239.03 0.00
4140 - WINTER WATER 0.00 0.00 5,630.81 5,630.81 0.00
4150 - ASSESSMENTS 0.00 608,096.71 463,615.14 (144,481.57) 131.16
4160 - RULE 11 FEES 0.00 0.00 65,040.00 65,040.00 0.00
4170 - WATER QUALITY - TESTING 1,086.00 6,841.00 14,000.00 7,159.00 48.86

WATER (1,404.13) (2,162,217.53) (3,864,011.34) (1,701,793.81) 55.96

4210 - SALARIES, FIELD 91,033.20 796,545.25 1,527,998.00 731,452.75 52.13
4220 - SALARIES, ENGINEERING 10,221.86 77,058.07 189,998.66 112,940.59 40.56
4240 - INSURANCE HEALTH 15,979.38 105,774.76 193,471.00 87,696.24 54.67
4250 - RETIREMENT 6,839.34 51,483.76 84,313.00 32,829.24 61.06
4260 - AWARDS 0.00 0.00 1,358.00 1,358.00 0.00
4270 - UNIFORMS 300.00 8,091.52 6,500.00 (1,591.52) 124.48
4280 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 1,131.00 1,131.00 0.00
4290 - CAR TIME 0.00 0.00 10,183.00 10,183.00 0.00

PERSONNEL OPERATIONS (124,373.78) (1,038,953.36) (2,014,952.66) (975,999.30) 51.56

4410 - FIELD 3,305.81 24,272.41 0.00 (24,272.41) 0.00
4411 - LOCATES 1,589.28 7,521.99 15,501.00 7,979.01 48.53
4412 - FARM PROPERTIES 0.00 14,761.36 2,760.00 (12,001.36) 534.83
4413 - SITE MAINTENANCE ANNUAL 0.00 3,090.64 5,698.00 2,607.36 54.24
4414 - CONSTRUCTION METER 0.00 10,970.31 0.00 (10,970.31) 0.00
4415 - WATER LINES (REPAIRS) 992.50 166,535.90 50,000.00 (116,535.90) 333.07
4416 - APPURTENANCE(REPAIR) 224.12 27,420.52 0.00 (27,420.52) 0.00
4417 - METER SETTING 0.00 134,277.59 600,000.00 465,722.41 22.38
4418 - MASTER METERS 0.00 18,245.90 5,000.00 (13,245.90) 364.92
4419 - SERVICE WORK 1,595.00 64,593.56 0.00 (64,593.56) 0.00
4420 - STORAGE TANKS (O & M) 0.00 12,749.12 0.00 (12,749.12) 0.00
4430 - PUMP STATIONS (O & M) 148,618.93 174,086.17 0.00 (174,086.17) 0.00
4435 - CHLORINE STATION 0.00 365.37 0.00 (365.37) 0.00
4440 - EQUIPMENT 3,511.02 24,300.32 205,000.00 180,699.68 11.85
4445 - SCADA EQUIPMENT 0.00 289.50 0.00 (289.50) 0.00
4446 - LOCATING EQUIPMENT 997.08 997.08 0.00 (997.08) 0.00
4450 - SHOP/YARD 4,502.43 62,427.18 0.00 (62,427.18) 0.00
4460 - VEHICLES 16,067.53 107,196.78 102,000.00 (5,196.78) 105.09
4470 - SAFETY 190.00 8,228.13 0.00 (8,228.13) 0.00
4480 - CONTROL VAULTS 0.00 1,305.15 29,226.00 27,920.85 4.47
4490 - MAPPING EXPENSE 6,128.57 32,397.32 39,968.00 7,570.68 81.06

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE (187,722.27) (896,032.30) (1,055,153.00) (159,120.70) 84.92

4500 - ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 3

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 (50,000.00) (50,000.00) 0.00

4600 - ELECTRICITY 17,198.00 114,360.09 181,100.00 66,739.91 63.15
4640 - METER VAULTS 0.00 9,009.75 0.00 (9,009.75) 0.00

ELECTRICITY (17,198.00) (123,369.84) (181,100.00) (57,730.16) 68.12

4700 - COMMUNICATIONS 100.22 701.85 0.00 (701.85) 0.00

COMMUNICATIONS (100.22) (701.85) 0.00 701.85 0.00

4810 - GENERAL 2,943.51 20,604.57 0.00 (20,604.57) 0.00
4820 - AUTO 968.45 8,490.15 0.00 (8,490.15) 0.00
4830 - WORKER'S COMP 2,546.96 22,393.72 0.00 (22,393.72) 0.00

INSURANCE (6,458.92) (51,488.44) 0.00 51,488.44 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 337,257.32 4,272,763.32 7,165,217.00 2,892,453.68 59.63

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
5110 - OFFICE 41,323.51 309,113.50 932,658.00 623,544.50 33.14

SALARIES 41,323.51 309,113.50 932,658.00 623,544.50 33.14

5210 - FICA 10,934.01 92,289.30 130,000.00 37,710.70 70.99
5220 - UNEMPLOYMENT 0.00 2,291.82 4,968.00 2,676.18 46.13

PAYROLL TAXES 10,934.01 94,581.12 134,968.00 40,386.88 70.08

5300 - HEALTH INSURANCE 0.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00
5310 - ADMIN HEALTH INSURANCE 4,358.39 27,135.84 0.00 (27,135.84) 0.00

HEALTH INSURANCE 4,358.39 27,135.84 60,000.00 32,864.16 45.23

5400 - OFFICE UTILITIES 263.27 1,606.61 0.00 (1,606.61) 0.00
5401 - ELECTRICITY 756.96 4,794.24 10,000.00 5,205.76 47.94
5402 - PROPANE 0.00 8,142.13 7,000.00 (1,142.13) 116.32
5403 - TELEPHONE 2,030.49 14,139.52 23,000.00 8,860.48 61.48
5404 - CELL PHONE SERVICE 3,170.75 11,490.12 20,000.00 8,509.88 57.45
5405 - CELL PHONE ACCESSORIES 0.00 9.77 500.00 490.23 1.95
5406 - OFFICE CLEANING SERVICE 1,700.00 10,200.00 20,000.00 9,800.00 51.00
5407 - INTERNET 0.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 0.00
5409 - SECURITY CAMERAS 3,380.00 11,505.00 0.00 (11,505.00) 0.00
5410 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT 0.00 135.45 0.00 (135.45) 0.00
5412 - PRINTERS 410.28 1,900.30 0.00 (1,900.30) 0.00
5413 - FURNITURE 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
5440 - COMPUTER 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
5441 - COMPUTER SUPPORT 5,619.00 39,552.56 66,245.00 26,692.44 59.71

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 4

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

5442 - HARDWARE (COMPUTERS) 7,795.00 7,795.00 0.00 (7,795.00) 0.00
5443 - SOFTWARE 0.00 71.00 7,000.00 6,929.00 1.01
5444 - LICENSES (ANNUAL) 0.00 27,572.45 30,000.00 2,427.55 91.91
5445 - SENSUS METER SUPPORT 0.00 2,438.00 3,000.00 562.00 81.27

OFFICE UTILITIES 25,125.75 141,352.15 191,105.00 49,752.85 73.97

5510 - OFFICE EXPENSES 13,293.07 105,394.96 175,107.00 69,712.04 60.19
5520 - POSTAGE 0.00 649.74 3,312.00 2,662.26 19.62
5530 - BANK / CREDIT CARD FEES 3,580.91 25,014.50 5,520.00 (19,494.50) 453.16
5540 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.00 41,806.52 1,104.00 (40,702.52) 3,786.82
5560 - PRINTING 0.00 0.00 2,760.00 2,760.00 0.00
5580 - DUES & REGISTRATION 3,100.00 3,150.00 3,312.00 162.00 95.11
5590 - TRAINING 100.00 200.00 8,833.00 8,633.00 2.26

OFFICE EXPENSE 20,073.98 176,215.72 199,948.00 23,732.28 88.13

5610 - LEGAL 1,260.00 435,586.79 357,000.00 (78,586.79) 122.01
5620 - ACCOUNTING 0.00 27,975.00 50,000.00 22,025.00 55.95
5630 - WATER TRANSFER FEES 0.00 3,016.58 100.00 (2,916.58) 3,016.58
5640 - MAPPING - NORTHLINE 0.00 0.00 700.00 700.00 0.00
5650 - CONSULTANT FEES 0.00 19,850.00 204,000.00 184,150.00 9.73
5660 - MEMBERSHIP FEES 0.00 35,638.55 9,022.00 (26,616.55) 395.02
5670 - APPRAISALS 23,500.00 27,500.00 0.00 (27,500.00) 0.00
5680 - LAND ACQUISITION 1,330.00 62,259.79 0.00 (62,259.79) 0.00

PROFESSIONAL FEES 26,090.00 611,826.71 620,822.00 8,995.29 98.55

5900 - MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 (406.94) 7,729.00 8,135.94 (5.27)
5920 - FIRE MITIGATION GRANT 0.00 17,382.97 0.00 (17,382.97) 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 16,976.03 7,729.00 (9,247.03) 219.64

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 127,905.64 1,377,201.07 2,147,230.00 770,028.93 64.14

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
6100 - SOLDIER CANYON 0.00 0.00 312,000.00 312,000.00 0.00

SOLDIER CANYON 0.00 0.00 312,000.00 312,000.00 0.00

6200 - STORAGE TANKS 8,800.00 581,950.48 1,600,000.00 1,018,049.52 36.37

STORAGE TANKS 8,800.00 581,950.48 1,600,000.00 1,018,049.52 36.37

6300 - PUMP STATIONS 0.00 117,117.57 0.00 (117,117.57) 0.00

PUMP STATIONS 0.00 117,117.57 0.00 (117,117.57) 0.00

6400 - EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 25,700.00 25,700.00 0.00
6410 - VEHICLES 0.00 144,345.42 142,000.00 (2,345.42) 101.65
6420 - TRENCH BOX 0.00 204.02 0.00 (204.02) 0.00

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 5

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

6440 - OTHER EQUIPMENT 24,198.75 24,198.75 0.00 (24,198.75) 0.00

EQUIPMENT 24,198.75 168,748.19 167,700.00 (1,048.19) 100.63

6505 - ENGINEERING 90,448.36 840,646.84 300,000.00 (540,646.84) 280.22
6510 - WATER LINES 0.00 5,499,828.45 15,200,000.00 9,700,171.55 36.18
6515 - METER UPGRADES 0.00 0.00 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.00
6540 - AWIA & GENERATORS 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00
6545 - SCADA EQUIPMENT 0.00 13,501.00 0.00 (13,501.00) 0.00

SYSTEM 90,448.36 6,353,976.29 16,090,000.00 9,736,023.71 39.49

6610 - WATER RESOURCE MANAGER 0.00 124,492.47 0.00 (124,492.47) 0.00
6615 - GRAVEL PITS 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00
6620 - WATER RIGHTS 0.00 6,990,000.00 9,000,000.00 2,010,000.00 77.67
6630 - LEGAL (WRM) 0.00 31,656.62 310,000.00 278,343.38 10.21
6640 - STORAGE 20,319.25 104,588.11 0.00 (104,588.11) 0.00

WATER RIGHTS 20,319.25 7,250,737.20 9,710,000.00 2,459,262.80 74.67

6710 - EASEMENTS 32,208.00 347,301.90 165,000.00 (182,301.90) 210.49
6720 - LAND 0.00 0.00 190,000.00 190,000.00 0.00
6730 - SURVEYING 868.00 16,723.50 5,000.00 (11,723.50) 334.47

LAND/EASEMENTS 33,076.00 364,025.40 360,000.00 (4,025.40) 101.12

BUILDING/PAVING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

OFFICE EQUIPMENT/MISC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 176,842.36 14,836,555.13 28,239,700.00 13,403,144.87 52.54

BONDS

BOND ISSUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7250 - PLANT EXPANSION 0.00 0.00 1,231,000.00 1,231,000.00 0.00
7290 - 2012R NW 1054 0.00 39,375.00 1,590,000.00 1,550,625.00 2.48
7292 - TRANSFER TO ENTERPRISE 0.00 34,312.50 0.00 (34,312.50) 0.00
7295 - 2019 BOND - NORT519WERB 0.00 279,300.00 0.00 (279,300.00) 0.00
7296 - 2020 BOND - WATER ENT 0.00 0.00 473,288.00 473,288.00 0.00
7297 - 2022 BOND 0.00 1,049,454.59 1,833,000.00 783,545.41 57.25

PRINCIPLE 0.00 1,402,442.09 5,127,288.00 3,724,845.91 27.35

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



Page: 6

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT

DETAIL
FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2023

CURRENT
MONTH YTD BUDGET

+ OR -
BUDGET

%
BUDGET

INTEREST EXPENSE OTHER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BONDS 0.00 (1,402,442.09) (5,127,288.00) (3,724,845.91) 27.35

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSES

DEPRECIATION & AMORT EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL REVENUES 3,016,463.68 15,707,135.69 22,624,387.00 6,917,251.31 69.43
TOTAL EXPENSES 642,005.32 21,888,961.61 42,679,435.00 20,790,473.39 51.29

PROFIT/LOSS 2,374,458.36 (6,181,825.92) (20,055,048.00) (13,873,222.08) 30.82

FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY



8/7/23 at 11:18:01.57 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Jul 31, 2023
1014 - 1014 - BANK OF COLORADO
Bank Statement Date: July 31, 2023

Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 4,442,536.36

Add: Cash Receipts 727,806.21

Less: Cash Disbursements (838,048.99)

Add (Less) Other 1,697,788.03

Ending GL Balance 6,030,081.61

Ending Bank Balance 6,417,607.56

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks
Nov 18, 2022 17106 (227.65)
Feb 8, 2023 17343 (37,789.84)
Apr 12, 2023 17582 (452.84)
May 12, 2023 17640 (750.00)
Jun 6, 2023 17733 (355.04)
Jun 9, 2023 17774 (71.04)
Jul 3, 2023 17800 (27.00)
Jul 5, 2023 17814 (21,008.00)
Jul 6, 2023 17823 (6,675.27)
Jul 6, 2023 17824 (116,666.75)
Jul 7, 2023 17827 (18,000.00)
Jul 17, 2023 17830 (24,198.75)
Jul 17, 2023 17831 (8,800.00)
Jul 18, 2023 17838 (314.98)
Jul 18, 2023 17839 (53.28)
Jul 18, 2023 17843 (40.78)
Jul 18, 2023 17844 (62.16)
Jul 18, 2023 17845 (33.87)
Jul 18, 2023 17849 (124.32)
Jul 19, 2023 17864 (4,875.00)
Jul 19, 2023 17866 (312.00)
Jul 19, 2023 17872 (1,779.13)
Jul 19, 2023 17873 (386.04)
Jul 20, 2023 17875 (997.08)
Jul 20, 2023 17876 (785.65)
Jul 20, 2023 17877 (4,440.87)
Jul 20, 2023 17878 (291.32)
Jul 21, 2023 17880 (196.30)
Jul 21, 2023 17881 (4,028.00)
Jul 21, 2023 17882 (5,500.00)
Jul 21, 2023 17883 (5,619.00)
Jul 21, 2023 17884 (24,194.41)
Jul 21, 2023 17885 (868.00)
Jul 21, 2023 17889 (190.00)
Jul 21, 2023 17890 (28.00)
Jul 21, 2023 17893 (435.00)
Jul 21, 2023 17894 (33,199.68)
Jul 21, 2023 17895 (100.22)
Jul 21, 2023 17896 (992.50)
Jul 21, 2023 17897 (7,795.00)
Jul 24, 2023 17898 (2,400.00)
Jul 24, 2023 17899 (182.45)
Jul 24, 2023 17900 (111.00)
Jul 24, 2023 17901 (200.00)
Jul 24, 2023 17902 (279.09)
Jul 24, 2023 17903 (9,879.23)
Jul 24, 2023 17904 (895.00)
Jul 24, 2023 17905 (26.23)



8/7/23 at 11:18:01.61 Page: 2

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Jul 31, 2023
1014 - 1014 - BANK OF COLORADO
Bank Statement Date: July 31, 2023

Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Jul 24, 2023 17906 (19,916.50)
Jul 24, 2023 17907 (387.00)
Jul 28, 2023 17908 (2,500.00)
Jul 28, 2023 OL-0728202 (2,030.49)
Jul 31, 2023 OL-0731202 (340.00)
Jul 31, 2023 OL-0731202 (1,340.00)
Jul 17, 2023 VOID 16682 (24,198.75)

Total outstanding checks (397,350.51)

Add (Less) Other
Jul 30, 2023 CC0730 2,562.14
Jul 31, 2023 CC0731 6,384.05
Jul 31, 2023 CCIH0720 878.37

Total other 9,824.56

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 6,030,081.61



8/7/23 at 09:47:21.45 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Jul 31, 2023
1015 - 1015 - COLO TRUST - GENERAL

Bank Statement Date: July 31, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 10,759,864.92

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 46,538.19

Ending GL Balance 10,806,403.11

Ending Bank Balance 10,806,403.11

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 10,806,403.11



8/7/23 at 09:49:40.45 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Jul 31, 2023
1019 - 1019 - COLO TRUST - 2019 BOND

Bank Statement Date: July 31, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 2,226,944.73

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 9,399.91

Ending GL Balance 2,236,344.64

Ending Bank Balance 2,236,344.64

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 2,236,344.64



8/7/23 at 09:56:17.11 Page: 1

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Account Reconciliation

As of Jul 31, 2023
1020 - 1020 - COLO TRUST - 2022 BOND

Bank Statement Date: July 31, 2023
Filter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Format.

Beginning GL Balance 39,266,669.49

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other 165,744.07

Ending GL Balance 39,432,413.56

Ending Bank Balance 39,432,413.56

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

(Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 39,432,413.56

















(TaskOrderV28Aug20)  Page 1 of 2 
 

Attachment A 
 

Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 4 
Water Supply and Storage Company 2021 Change of Use Water Court Application 

June 28, 2023 
 

This Task Order sets forth the terms and conditions of services to be completed pursuant to communications between 
ELEMENT and CLIENT and serves to amend Attachment A to the Master Consulting Agreement between our firms 
dated October 21, 2019. 

Scope of Services 

ELEMENT is providing water resources services to CLIENT to support a change of use of Water Supply and Storage 
Company (WSSC) water rights in Case No. 21CW3119. The first phase (Phase I) covered services including the 
preparation of a Preliminary Expert Report and providing support to CLIENT and its legal counsel in the development 
of a water court application (the Application), preparing a draft water court decree, preparing a Substitute Water Supply 
Plan (SWSP) application, responding to a Summary of Consultation, reviewing and responding to objector comments, 
and in settlement negotiations. If the Application is not settled prior to July 1, 2023, it will be referred to the water court 
judge. The primary purpose of this first amendment to the task order is to continue assisting CLIENT in its settlement 
negotiations. This includes providing information to the City of Greeley’s consultant related to information ELEMENT 
prepared to assist CLIENT in settlement with the Larimer and Weld Irrigation Company, Larimer and Weld Reservoir 
Company, and WRCC, Inc. ELEMENT will also assist CLIENT with its Substitute Water Supply Plan renewal application 
for 2024. A subsequent amendment will be provided if an expert report and trial preparation are needed.  

Deliverables and Project Schedule 

The primary deliverable under this Amendment will be technical information provided to CLIENT’s legal counsel to 
support settlement negotiations, information provided to the City of Greeley’s consultant, and information provided to 
CLIENT in support of its SWSP renewal application for 2024. All deliverables, as well as participation in 
phone/conference calls, meetings, and communication via email will be provided in a timely manner to meet critical 
deadlines and mutually agreed-upon schedules. We are available to begin working on this project upon execution of 
the Agreement.  
 
Fee Schedule 

The budget estimate for the tasks described in the Scope of Services section above is $40,000, based on the hourly 
rates described below. This budget estimate will include the period from June 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023. Payments 
for our services are based on the actual time spent on CLIENT’s behalf and are measured by standard hourly rates 
based upon a 40-hour work week. Our current hourly rates are as follows: 
 

Professional Services Hourly Rate 
Administrative $75.00 

Staff Engineer/Hydrologist $140.00 
Project Engineer/Hydrologist $160.00 
Senior Engineer/Hydrologist $185.00 

Project Manager $195.00 
Senior Project Manager $205.00 

 
Overtime, rush, and holiday work necessitated by CLIENT’s directive is billed at an additional $55 per hour. Sub-
consultants to ELEMENT are billed at cost plus five percent. ELEMENT reserves the right to adjust the hourly rates 
annually. 
 
If scope changes or project specifications cause an increase or decrease in services, an equitable adjustment shall be 
made to ELEMENT's compensation and this Agreement shall be modified by change order accordingly. ELEMENT will 
treat as a change order any written or oral order (including directions, instructions, interpretations or determinations) 
from CLIENT which request changes in the services.  ELEMENT will provide CLIENT notice within ten (10) days of the 
change order of any resulting increase in fee. Unless CLIENT objects in writing within five (5) days, the change order 
becomes part of this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement material circumstances or conditions come to 
exist that were not originally contemplated by or known to a party, to the extent that they affect the scope of services, 
compensation, schedule, allocation of risks or other material terms of this Agreement, either party may call for 
renegotiation of appropriate portions of this Agreement. Each party shall notify the other party of the changed conditions 
necessitating renegotiation, and the parties shall promptly and in good faith enter into renegotiation of this 



(TaskOrderV28Aug20)  Page 2 of 2 
 

Agreement.  If terms cannot be agreed to, either party may then terminate this Agreement.  
 
 
CLIENT   ELEMENT Water Consulting, Inc.  
 
 
 
By:  By:  
        Signature & Title        Beorn A. Courtney, P.E., President 
  
 
 
Date:   Date:   
 
 



 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
3325 South Timberline Road 
2nd Floor 
Fort Collins CO  80525-3681 

June 15, 2023 

Project/File: North Weld County Water District Regional Master Plan    

Eric Reckentine 

North Weld County Water District 

32825 Co Rd 39 

Lucerne, CO 80646 

Dear Eric Reckentine, 

Reference: Regional Master Plan - Progress Update 

As the internal project manager for Stantec on this project, I have recently completed an audit of our 

scope and budget. Last month, we were unable to invoice you, due to the lack of physical percent 

complete progress on this fixed-fee project. As a result, I have conferred with the project team to 

determine the cause of the lack of progress despite the hours spent on the project.  

A portion of our overrun stems from an underestimate of the level of effort it would take to complete 

certain tasks. For example, it took our resources more time to become familiar with the data than 

anticipated and we have had to hold more internal coordination meetings than we initially planned for. 

This is a burden Stantec should be expected to bear, as it is not the fault of the District that we did not 

budget these tasks correctly. 

However, a portion of the blame can be attributed to the difficulty we have had in collecting and 

managing the necessary data and system information from the District and the Towns. For example, the 

amount of data sent from the District for the model was overwhelming and was not always useful. 

Incorrect data was sent through GIS and there were problems with the totalizer flows. Also, the SCFP 

spreadsheets that were sent were not useful for the modeling needs. Our resources spent a significant 

amount of time going through the data to find the numbers that were pertinent for the model updates 

and calibration. As a result, twice as much time was spent on the Data Collection and System 

Characterization tasks than was budgeted. 

The Population Growth and Water Demand task was also more difficult than originally anticipated. For 

example, we struggled to get data from the Towns and had to hold several additional meetings to get 

useful data. It was originally assumed that we would not need any additional meetings with the Towns 

and that the data sent would be sufficient to update the peaking factors.  

Under the Model Update and Calibration task, we were scoped to verify the Model with GIS data sent 

from the District. The information in the model was to be “spot checked” against information in the 

District’s GIS. However, GIS information sent by the District was not up to date and several meetings 

were required to reconcile the data with what was in the model. Over 80 hours were spent on this task 

when the level of effort was budgeted at 16 hours.  



 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
3325 South Timberline Road 
2nd Floor 
Fort Collins CO  80525-3681 

The task that required generating and allocating water demands was also a larger effort than anticipated. 

We had been scoped to use the 2021 demand datasets, which were already in the model, but were 

asked to use 2022 data. This was difficult because some residential user data is actually farm/dairy 

demand in 2022 and it took extra effort to figure out how to handle that. Furthermore, we did not 

originally anticipate simulating specific subdivisions in the model, which ended up being necessary. 

Below is a summary of the overruns we have been experiencing. Given the circumstances surrounding 

the cause of the overruns, we would hope that you would agree to sharing some of the burden. We are 

requesting an amendment to our contract in the sum of $15,200.  

 

Activity 
Hours 

Budgeted 
Fee 

Budgeted 
Hours 
Spent Fee Spent 

Additional 
Hours 

Requested 

Additional 
Fee 

Requested 

Data Collection 11 $1,480 39 $5,928 18 $2,736 

System 
Characterization 32 $4,280 50 $7,600 12 $1,824 

Population Growth and 
Water Demands 55 $7,810 89 $13,528 22 $3,344 

GIS Model Verification 16 $2,270 82 $12,464 42 $6,384 

Generation and 
Allocation of Water 
Demands 11 $1,540 21 $3,192 6 $912 

Total 125 $17,380 281 $42,712.00 100 $15,200 

 

Please feel free to call me to discuss these findings and the potential for an amendment. 

Best regards, 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

 

 

Lisa Fardal PE, PMP 

Project Manager 
Phone: (970) 212-2773 
Mobile: (970) 231-5538 
lisa.fardal@stantec.com 

 

 



Attachment 1 – Work Tasks and Estimated Level of Effort for Updating COS Water Rate Study 
and Plant Investment Surcharge 
 

Task Description Estimated 
labor effort, 
hours 

Update historical 
usage and 
demands 

Update historical water usage and demand, by sector, including 
2022 and 2023, to date;  

4 

Update future 
usage and 
demand 
estimates 

Update estimates of future usage and demands by sector, 
acknowledging high degree of uncertainty associated with NISP-
influenced future wholesale demands and commercial demands 
associated with dairy operators.   
 
This task would also include confirming most recent estimates of 
wholesale customer peaking factors, and expressing future 
demand in both terms of water volume and in the number of 
taps.  Also, a strong link and consistency with demands used in 
the revised system hydraulic model is essential. 
 
Demand will ultimately be driven by a combination of traditional 
growth, future actions taken by wholesale and commercial users, 
and the ability of the system to install sufficient capacity to 
provide service, or taps, where and when requested.  Future 
demand is expressed in the number of taps.  However, it is 
important to note how many new taps are created by new 
customers and how many new taps are created by existing 
commercial customers using water beyond their allocation.   
 
This task will focus upon a baseline and alternative demand 
scenarios, especially re. future wholesale customer demands.   
 

24 

Commercial and 
residential usage 
beyond 
purchased taps 

For purposes of estimating water and plant allocation surcharge 
revenue, estimate annual usage in excess of water and plant tap 
investments.  Due to uncertainty re. how commercial users may 
react to demand management policies, these usage estimates 
and corresponding revenue estimates will be similarly uncertain.  

8 

Update Capital 
Improvement 
Program (CIP) 
estimates 

Obtain future CIP estimate for as far into the future as the District 
and their consultants are comfortable with.   Express future costs 
in both 2023 dollars and with anticipated cost escalation. 
 
Allocate CIP costs between expenditures to accommodate future 
customers, or growth, and expenditures benefitting existing 
customers.  Growth-related expenditures will be recovered 
through PI fees and accrue to the Capital Reserve portion of the 
rate model.  Remaining CIP expenditures will be recovered 
through monthly water charges to customers. 

16 



 
Further allocate CIP costs on a joint-specific basis:  whether the 
expenditures provide district-wide benefit or benefit a specific 
group of customers. 

Update PI fees  Update Plant Investment fees based on the CIP costs allocated to 
growth and the expected number of new taps.  PI fees will be 
calculated on a District-wide basis and also for wholesale 
customers, as a group. 

16 

Update Revenue 
Requirements 

Update the system’s current and future annual operating cost 
estimates, including O&M costs, administrative costs, and capital 
costs and debt service recovered through rates.  Subtract non-
rate revenues from this total, including PI and Water Allocation 
surcharge revenues.  The remaining balance is the basis for 
monthly water charges. 
 
Some discussion will be necessary to confirm that surcharge 
revenues continue to “buy-down” rates for existing customers 
rather than be used for capital expenditures, primarily water 
acquisition. 

8 

Update Capital 
Reserve 
accounting 

Within the rate model, capital-related revenues, including tap 
fees, and capital expenditures are tracked separately from the 
revenue requirements.  Estimated annual capital reserves are the 
result of this table. 
 
Bond proceeds and annual debt service calculations are included 
in this capital accounting. 

12 

Cost allocation to 
function, update 

Revenue requirements are allocated to water system function, 
including source of supply, treatment, transmission, storage, 
distribution, and administrative. 
 
These allocations ensure that wholesale customers do not pay for 
water supply or small diameter distribution lines. 

4 

Cost allocation to 
base-extra 
capacity, update 

Allocation of the functionalized costs to base-extra capacity 
parameters:  average day, max day, and max hour.   

4 

Cost allocation to 
customer class, 
update 

Further allocation of costs to customer class based on usage and 
peak demand characteristics.   

4 

Cost-of-service 
rate calculations 
by customer 
class, update 

Calculate cost of service-based water rates by customer class for 
either a baseline year or multi-year average scenario.   

16 

Rate 
implementation 

Assess one or more rate scenarios that ensure rate revenues are 
adequate for a 5-year period through 2028.   

8 

District cash flow Determine the District’s annual cash flow and annual capital 
reserve levels based on these rate scenarios. 

8 



Planning 
scenarios 

It is anticipated that several scenarios will be considered with 
respect to future wholesale customer usage and commercial 
usage.   

24 

Update COS Rate 
Study document 

Provide an updated draft of the Cost of Service Water Rate Study.  
It is assumed that after District review, this document will assist in 
negotiating water rates with exiting wholesale customers 

24 

Board meeting 
and other 
meetings 
attendance 

Attend October Board meeting 8 

Other meetings 
and telephone 
conferences 

Included in the tasks above.  

Total estimated effort for rate study update and planning scenarios 196 @ 
$160/hr = 
$31,360 

Update PI 
Surcharge and 
associated 
Memorandum 

Based on changes in water acquisition costs and reflecting any 
future changes in District policies regarding PI surcharges, update 
the surcharge level and its documentation 

16 @ 
$160/hr = 
$2,560 

   

 



Page 1 of 6 

 

2133 South Timberline, Suite 110 

Fort Collins, CO 80525 

ditescoservices.com

 

Delivery by email to: 
Randy Siddens randys@elcowater.org 

Eric Reckentine ericr@nwcwd.org 
 

 
August 4, 2023 
 
Mr. Mike Scheid     Mr. Eric Reckentine 
General Manager    General Manager 
East Larimer County Water District  North Weld County Water District 
232 South Link Lane    32825 Co Rd 39 
Fort Collins, Colorado 80522   Lucerne, CO 80646 
 
RE: NEWT 3 – Construction Management 

Scope of Services Proposal 
 
Dear Eric and Mike: 
 
This scope of work proposal follows on our recent discussions regarding having Ditesco continue to support the 
NEWT3 project through the construction phase. 
 
Providence Infrastructure Consultants (PIC) has been retained to provide engineering services during construction.  
Garney Construction has been retained to provide general contracting and construction services.  Retaining 
Ditesco to provide construction management, inspection and contract administration completes the construction 
phase team.  Ditesco will act as CM as Owner’s Agent for this phase of the work. 
 
Thank you for giving Ditesco the opportunity to provide these services for this project! 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or require further information regarding this proposal, I can be 
reached by phone at 970.988.8605 and email keith.meyer@ditescoservices.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Keith Meyer, P.E. 
 
Enc. scope of services 
 
 
Cc: Crystal Bidwell, 

Andrew West 
file 

  



Page 2 of 6 

Exhibit A 
NEWT 3 

Construction Management 
 
Project Understanding 
 
This scope of services is a continuation of our prior contract providing project management services for the NEWT3 
pipeline project.  North Weld County Water District (North Weld) and East Larimer County Water District (ELCO) 
have partnered on the NEWT3 project with North Weld owning 70% of the pipeline and ELCO owning 30%.  The 
project will provide needed potable water to various portions of each water district.  Currently, Providence (PIC) has 
completed the design efforts while Garney Construction has provided a final GMP for the construction contract.   
 
The services provided under this contract are generally expected to include construction management, contract 
administration, inspection and document management. 
 
Task 1:  Design and Permitting Management 
 

• This task is complete. 
 
Task 2 – Preconstruction 
 

• Our team will photograph existing site conditions to develop a baseline record of pre-existing conditions to 
provide documentation for protecting the Districts from damage claims. This will be done with standard 
photographic means and drone technology. 

 
• Prior to construction, we will establish a Procore document management site for design team, owner and 

contractor access.  This site will house all construction phase communications including submittal reviews, 
RFIs, meeting minutes, and reports.  Ditesco staff will establish the required tracking logs within Procore to 
manage the RFI, submittal and change tracking processes for use in inspection and quality control.  
Ditesco will provide training and access for users of this cloud-based application. 
 

• We will develop a Risk Register for use during preconstruction, construction, and post-construction phases.  
The Risk Register will require buy-in and understanding from all parties.  Ditesco will work to ensure a 
proper balance of risk balance between the Districts, Providence, and Garney. 
 

• Our team will review the contractor’s construction schedule and provide comments in order to ensure a 
logical and achievable project schedule. 
 

Task 3: Construction 
 

• During this phase Ditesco will provide full-time Construction Management as Owner’s Agent and Resident 
Engineering services to assist in work coordination and ensure compliance with contract 
documents/specifications. 

 
• Our staff will attend and document one pre-construction meeting. 

 
• We will attend weekly progress meetings on site with the contractor and their subcontractors.  We will 

provide meeting minutes for all meetings, track action items and ensure follow-through by the assigned 
party. 
 

• Ditesco staff will conduct special project meetings as necessary for work planning, method of procedure 
(MOP) review and sequencing events as may be defined in the specifications or as required by the 
construction process. 

 
• During the construction phase, we will manage a Procore document management site for design team, and 

owner.  This site will house construction phase communications including, meeting minutes, test results, 
correspondence, daily logs and reports. 

 



Page 3 of 6 

• Our team will ensure work does not occur until approved submittals are provided by the contractor.  As part 
of our normal inspection procedures, our staff will ensure all materials received on the jobsite conform to 
approved submittals and shop drawings. 

 
• Ditesco staff will review all material test reports provided by the Districts’ QC testing firm.  We will comment 

on reports not meeting specifications and recommend remediation measures if necessary.  We will ensure 
the appropriate number of tests are taken and that they are sampled according to industry standards and 
the project specifications. 
 

• We will maintain a photographic log of the project documenting construction and post construction 
conditions.  This work is expected to include brief descriptions of each photograph with a filename, time 
and date reference.  This work will be within the Procore document management site. 

 
• We will maintain project records including contracts, schedules (overall job and three/six-week look-ahead), 

progress meeting minutes, material test results, weekly reports, correspondence, pay applications, change 
orders, routine photographs, testing records and post construction close-out paperwork (punch lists, lien 
waivers, substantial completion/final acceptance). 
 

• We will review and recommend approval of pay applications to the Districts, review and manage contract 
changes for approval by the Districts and provide for overall administration of the construction contract.  
This work includes verification of quantities and cost backup, review and audit of all change order requests 
and performing independent cost estimates as necessary to support change order audits. 

 
• We will implement change control procedures for a CMaR construction contract.  This will include daily; 

weekly and monthly tracking of contractor progress items.  We will establish these procedures with the 
contractor from the onset of construction. 
 

• Ditesco will act as the main contact for the Districts, the Engineer and Contractor throughout the 
construction phase, managing all aspects of the project delivery. 
 

• Our staff will perform daily site inspection and observation (full time) to ensure quality construction and 
conformity to the plans and specifications.  Inspections will include pipeline installation, excavation, 
dewatering, trench stabilization, shoring, pipe bedding, interior and exterior coatings, backfill and site 
restoration.  Additional inspection will include structural concrete, reinforcing steel, roadway reconstruction 
and asphalt paving.  We will provide field engineering support addressing field changes quickly to avoid 
construction delays. 
 

• We understand bore/tunnel work is being performed as a design/build component to the Contractor’s 
contract.  As such, we will support this work, but will rely on the engineer of record for final inspection of the 
tunnel and boring field installation and construction quality. 
 

• Our team will ensure the project is built to a high degree of quality.  Nonconformance reports will be issued 
as necessary to document quality issues and bring issues to final closure. 
 

• We will coordinate construction activities will all stakeholders including the Districts, private property 
owners, and others as necessary. 
 

• We will ensure the material testing firm is appropriately managed and quality control reporting is accurate. 
 

• We will provide the Districts with weekly and monthly reports documenting the contractors work progress, 
contract times and other pertinent information. 
 

• We will document daily work progress in the form of daily construction reports through the Procore site for 
each day that Ditesco is onsite for inspection.  Daily reports will include work activities, production, photos, 
crew and equipment allocation, communications, testing, materials received, traffic management, changes 
in conditions, weather, any outside visitors, and hours worked. 
 

• We routinely manage a “pending issues” log that tracks pending changes and issues related to the 
construction contract.  This tool will form the basis of change orders and change control. 
 



Page 4 of 6 

• Ditesco will ensure accurate record drawings are maintained through collection of Contractor provided 
redlines and information we may collect. 
 

• Ditesco staff will document as-built locations of the pipeline through use of survey and GPS grade 
equipment as a supplement to the contractor’s work. 

 
• Our team will monitor the contractor’s schedule regularly and will expect monthly updates to the project 

CPM from them.  We will endeavor to share project scheduling software files with the contractor to review 
logic, float and activity durations in detail.  We will report on any discrepancies in the schedule to the 
expected delivery through terms in the construction contract. 

 
Task 4: Post Construction 
 

• We will conduct a final punch list walk-through for various stages of the work. 
 

• Ditesco personnel will ensure that an as-built plan set is maintained by the Contractor, reviewed by 
Ditesco, and transmitted to the Engineer upon completion of the project.  This will be redlined drawings in 
Bluebeam or electronic drawings (CAD) maintained by our staff and will be coordinated with plan changes 
that may be documented by the Contractor.  We expect redlined drawings will be maintained through 
Procore or a Bluebeam Studio session.  We will also ensure accurate O&M manuals are transmitted to the 
Districts upon completion of the project (as applicable). 
 

• Ditesco staff will assist the Districts in compiling, executing and collecting all necessary close out 
paperwork including substantial completion, final acceptance, lien waivers, consent of surety, warranty 
letters and other close out forms as necessary. 
 

• We will provide a written Certificate of Completion to the Districts and a final letter certifying that the 
construction was performed in accordance with the approved plans/specifications relative to Ditesco’s 
onsite observations. 
 

• We will conduct warranty walk-through inspections at designated times after final project acceptance. 
 

Deliverables 
 
 • Deliverables will include full project documentation including: construction correspondence, pay 

applications, change orders, field orders, work change directives, schedules, reports, photographs, meeting 
notes, record drawings and other relevant information produced throughout the preconstruction and 
construction phase.  All documents will be provided in an electronic form on external drives for Districts use 
(as duplicated from the Procore site). 

 
Schedule 
 
The anticipated schedule for the construction phase of NEWT3 is: 
 

Construction Phase:  October 2023 through late fall 2024 (estimated at 15 months) 
 
Fee Estimate 
 

 
Total:            $1,411,284.00 
 
Work will be billed at the time and material rates shown in Exhibit B, not to exceed.  Please refer to page 6 of this 
proposal for a detailed breakdown of the fee estimate.  All reimbursable expenses will be billed at direct cost, without 
markup, including subconsultants. 
 
  



Page 5 of 6 

 
 

Exhibit B 
 

Ditesco 2023-2024 Rates 
 

President: $240.00 per hour 

Principal: $185.00 per hour 

Department Manager: $165.00 per hour 

Senior Project Manager: $152.00 per hour 

Project Manager: $145.00 per hour 

Associate Project Manager: $125.00 per hour 

Engineer: $120.00 per hour 

Associate Engineer: $115.00 per hour 

Project Engineer: $110.00 per hour 

Senior Construction Manager: $152.00 per hour 

Construction Manager: $126.00 per hour 

Inspector: $95.00 per hour 

Senior CAD Designer: $136.00 per hour 

CAD Designer: $85.00 per hour 

GIS Technician: $82.00 per hour 

Administrative: $72.00 per hour 

  

Mileage Reimbursement: IRS Rate 

Daily Truck Rate: $105.00 per day 

Subconsultant Markup none 

All other costs at direct expense  

Terms 30 days net 

 



North Weld / ELCO

NEWT 3 Pipeline Construction Management 8/5/2023

A B C D E F G H I J

Keith Meyer Bill Renz Matt Jardin Andrew West Nathan Dunning Eric Kitscher Rhonda Bunner Leslie Bratner

Principal/PM
Sr. Project 

Manager

Construction 

Manager
Engineer Engineer Inspector CAD Designer Admin

(hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs) (hrs)

$185 $152 $126 $115 $120 $95 $136 $68

Task 2:  Preconstruction Phase $1,254,782
 2.03 Contract Management

    - Contract Management 4 2 0 2 0 0 0 4 $1,546

    - Establish Procore site for project team 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 $764 document management

    - Preconstruction Photos and Video 0 0 18 24 10 0 0 0 $6,228 photos and drone documentation

 1.02 Meetings

    - Routine Meeting Allowance 24 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 $7,200 misc. meeting allowance

Construction Phase (14 months)

Task 3: Construction
  1.02 Preconstruction Meeting (minutes, contact lists, etc.) 4 0 3 3 3 0 0 2 $1,959

  1.02 Progress meetings (1 per week for 15 months) 183 91.5 274 274 68.5 68.5 0 183 $140,969
  2.03 Create and compile job files/Procore Management 23 46 91 183 0 0 0 0 $43,758

  2.02 Submittal/shop drawing coordination and record keeping 46 91 69 91 0 0 0 0 $41,501 Submittals by Engineer

  2.04 RFI Response 10 8 4 20 8 0 0 0 $6,830 RFIs by Engineer

  2.03 Contract Management - Construction 30 15 0 30 0 0 0 15 $12,300

  2.03 Contract Management (pay applications, change orders, etc.) 30 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 $9,000

  2.01 Construction Management (CM/RE) 183 91 2057 686 2285 1371 0 0 $790,204 based on 50 hr work week; two pipe headings

  1.07 Monthly Reports 4 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 $3,485 summary reports to Districts

  2.01 Daily Construction Logs 0 0 457 114 457 229 0 0 $147,287

  2.07 Record Drawing Documentation 0 0 4 10 20 4 80 0 $15,314

  2.05 Schedule Management 15 0 15 10 0 0 0 0 $5,815

Task 4: Post-Construction Services (warranty period)
  2.06 Start Up and Testing 4 2 8 16 20 0 0 0 $6,292

  2.07 Punch list walk through 2 0 16 16 16 0 0 0 $6,146

  2.07 Close out paperwork (substantial and final completion, etc.) 4 1 0 4 0 0 0 0 $1,352

  2.07 Project Close Out (compilation of files, photos, job records, etc.) 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 4 $1,192

  2.07 Warranty walkthrough (11th month) 8 2 16 16 0 0 0 0 $5,640

Reimbursables (estimated):

Vehicle Cost at $105/day; 3 vehicles $143,955 3 truck assignments for duration

Other Direct Costs as a % of labor at 1.0% $12,548 material testing by Districts under 

separate contract

NOTE: staff assignments are based on current availability and may change at Ditesco's discretion.

Design and Permitting Phase Subtotal 574 352 3032 1580 2888 1673 80 223

% Job Assignment 0.24 0.15 1.26 0.66 1.20 0.70 0.03 0.09

Cost $106,190 $53,428 $382,032 $181,700 $346,500 $158,888 $10,880 $15,164

Reimbursable Costs (mileage, etc) $156,503

Total Cost $1,411,284

Design Phase/Task Description Task Total

Person/Role

Notes

Page 6 of 6







Page 1 of 8 

 

 

NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR ACCESS 

 

This NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT AGREEMENT is made this ______ day of 

___________, 2023, by and between CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule 

municipality, as to an undivided 50% interest, whose address is 1000 10th Street, Greeley, 

Colorado, FORT COLLINS-LOVELAND WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation 

and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, as to an undivided 21% interest, NORTH 

WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political 

subdivision of the State of Colorado as to an undivided 16.5% interest and EAST LARIMER 

COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the 

State of Colorado as to an undivided 12.5% interest,  (collectively, “Grantors”), and MARK A. 

LINDER, whose address is 4355 Bingham Hill Road, Fort Collins, Colorado, 80521 (“Grantee”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

a. Grantors own the real property known as Larimer County Parcel Number: 98324-12-901 

(“Property”) legally described as: 

 

OUTLOT A, LINDER MINOR LAND DIVISION 11-S3085, COUNTY OF LARIMER, 

STATE OF COLORADO. 

 

b. Grantee desires to use and occupy a portion of the Property for access purposes 

(“Licensed Use”) in, on, through, across or along portions of the Property and desires to 

obtain Grantors’ permission, therefore. 

 

c. Grantors desire to grant to Grantee a non-exclusive easement (“Easement”) for the above-

stated purpose, upon the terms and conditions contained below. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, Grantors hereby grant to Grantee, with respect to such interest as Grantors may 

have in the Property, the authorization to access in, on, through, across or along portions of the 

Property shown on Exhibit A, and legally described on Exhibit A-1, subject to the following: 

 

1. Grantors intend to use the Property for the construction, operation, maintenance, repair, 

replacement, and relocation of their uses and facilities and the rights herein granted to 

Grantee for the use of the Property are subject to the rights of Grantors to use the 

Property for such purposes, which rights Grantors hereby expressly reserve. 

 

2. Grantee shall apply for, obtain, and pay for, any and all permits required by the Grantors 

and any and all other applicable jurisdictions prior to commencing any work within the 

Property. 

 



Page 2 of 8 

 

3. Grantee shall restore, at Grantee’s sole cost and expense, the surface of the Property, as 

nearly as practicable and permissible, to its prior condition and contour following any 

disturbance of the Property occasioned by the uses granted Grantee in this Easement.  

 

4. Any damage to the Property or to any of Grantors’ facilities located on the Property, as a 

result of the access shall be paid for, and repaired, at the sole expense of Grantee. All 

repairs shall be made in accordance with Grantors current municipal rules, regulations, 

and ordinances. 

 

5. As used in this Easement, the terms (“Claims”) means (1) losses, liabilities, and expenses 

of any sort, including attorneys’ fees; (2) fines and penalties; (3) environmental costs, 

including, but not limited to, investigation, removal, remedial, and restoration costs, and 

consultant and other fees and expenses; and (4) any and all other costs or expenses. 

 

6. As used in this Easement, the term (“Injury”) means (1) death, personal injury, or 

property damage; (2) loss of profits or other economic injury; (3) disease or actual or 

threatened health effect; and (4) any consequential or other damages. 

 

7. To the extent permitted by law, Grantee covenants and agrees to at all times protect, 

indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Grantors, their respective directors, officers, 

agents, employees, successors, assigns, parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates from and 

against any and all Claims arising from, alleged to arise from, or related to any Injury 

allegedly or actually occurring, imposed as a result of, arising from, or related to (1) this 

Easement; (2) Grantee’s or any other person’s presence at the Property as a result of or 

related to this Easement. 

 

8. Grantee’s duty to protect, indemnify, hold harmless, and defend hereunder shall apply to 

any and all Claims and Injury, including, but not limited to: 

 

a. Claims asserted by and person or entity, including, but not limited to, employees 

of Grantee or Grantee’s contractors, subcontractors, or their employees; 

 

b. Claims arising from, or alleged to be arising in any way from, the acts or 

omissions of Grantee, Grantee’s sublessees, invitees, agents, or employees. 

 

9. Each of the Grantors warrant that the signatories hereto have the authority to grant this 

Easement to Grantee. 

  

10. Grantors do not waive any provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, CRS 

§24-10-101, et seq. 

 

11. This Easement is not transferable or assignable without written notice to Grantors. 

 

12. Upon abandonment of the use of the Property by Grantee, this Easement shall terminate. 

 



Page 3 of 8 

 

13. This Easement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the legal representatives, 

successors, heirs, and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 

14. This Easement may be executed in two (2) original counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original of this instrument. 

 

15. Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed and delivered by electronic 

signature by any of the parties and all parties consent to the use of electronic signatures. 

 

16. Recording. City will record this Agreement in the real property records of the Larimer 

County Clerk and Recorder. 

 

 

{SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW}



Page 4 of 8 

 

 

GRANTEE: 

 

__________________________________  Date: _________________ 

Mark A. Linder 

 

 

STATE OF __________________) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ________________) 

 

 

Acknowledged before me on this _____ day of ___________________, 2023, by 

Mark A. Linder as Licensee. 

 

 

WITNESS MY HAND AND MY SEAL 

 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES ________________ 

 

 

________________________________________ 

        Notary Public 

 



Page 5 of 8 

 

GRANTOR: 

 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO, 

a Colorado home rule municipality 

 

 

 

Real Estate Management: 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ Date: ___________________ 

       Kallasandra Moran, Real Estate Manager 

 

 

Owning Department: 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ Date: _______________________________ 

 Adam Prior, Chief Engineer  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 6 of 8 

 

 

GRANTOR: 

 

FORT COLLINS-LOVELAND WATER DISTRICT, A quasi-municipal  

corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado 

 

 

By: ___________________________   ATTEST: ___________________________ 

      Chris Pletcher, P.E. District Manager  

   

 

      

STATE OF COLORADO )  

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF LARIMER )  

 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 2023, by 

Chris Pletcher, as District Manager of the FORT COLLINS-LOVELAND WATER DISTRICT, 

a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

My commission expires: _________________  

 

       

             

       _____________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 8 

 

GRANTOR:  

 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER  

DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 

 

ATTEST:   

 

_____________________   ___________________________ 

Tad Stout, President    Scott Cockroft, Secretary 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO )  

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF WELD  )  

 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 2023, by 

Tad Stout, as President of the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political 

Subdivision of the State of Colorado. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

My commission expires: _________________  

 

       

             

       _____________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 8 of 8 

 

GRANTOR: 

 

EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER 

DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 

a political subdivision of the State of Colorado  

 

 

By________________________________ 

    Loren Maxey, President 

  

 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF LARIMER ) 

 

  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 

_____________________, 2023, by Loren Maxey, as President of EAST LARIMER COUNTY 

WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of 

Colorado. 

  

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 My commission expires:  ____________________ 

       

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 



X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

G V

Larimer #2 Canal

Existing Access Road

TRAPEZOIDAL DITCH CHANNEL
& 36" ADS N-12

(SEE PLAN & PROFILE  SHEET C201)

102

C103

101

C103

103

C103

106

C104

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET INDEX:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 B

Y:

SC
AL

E:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:

TR
I-D

IS
TR

IC
TS

LA
R

IM
ER

 N
O

 2
 D

IT
C

H
 L

AT
ER

AL
D

AT
E:

D
ec

em
be

r 5
, 2

02
2

B.
R

en
z

D
ra

wi
ng

 N
am

e:
 D

:\
Pr

oj
ec

ts
\L

ar
im

er
 N

o 
2 

La
te

ra
l\

D
wg

\S
he

et
s\

Si
te

 L
ay

ou
t.

dw
g 

Tu
es

da
y,

 D
ec

em
be

r 
06

, 2
02

2 
5:

48
 P

M
 B

y:
 R

ho
nd

a 
Bu

nn
er

R
.B

un
ne

r

B.
R

en
z

21
33

 S
. T

im
be

rli
ne

 R
oa

d,
 S

ui
te

 1
10

Fo
rt 

C
ol

lin
s,

 C
ol

or
ad

o 
 8

05
25

Ph
on

e:
 9

70
.6

32
.5

06
8

w
w

w
.d

ite
sc

os
er

vi
ce

s.
co

m

Sh
ee

t R
ev

is
io

ns
D

at
e:

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

By
:

N
o.

PROJECT NUMBER:
XXXX

P.E. Seal

O
U

TL
ET

 S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
SI

TE
 A

N
D

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 P

LA
N 1"

 =
 5

'

Si
te

 L
ay

ou
t.d

w
g

C102
6

SCALE: 1" = 5'

05' 5' 10' 15'

(True scale for 22x34 sheet size)

LEGEND:

NOTES:

FIELD SURVEY BY:

X

W W

15'' UD

X
X

X

X

XX

EXHIBIT A







 
 
 PERMANENT EXCLUSIVE WATER PIPELINE EASEMENT  
 

This Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement is made this  day of 
__________________ , 2023, by and between ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION, A 
MISSOURI CHARITABLE TRUST, whose address is One Busch Place, St. Louis, MO 63118  
(“GRANTOR”), and the EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, whose address is 232 South Link 
Lane, Fort Collins, Colorado 80524 and the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado, which has an  address of 33247 Highway 85, 
Lucerne, Colorado, 80646 (jointly, “GRANTEE”). 

 
GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100 dollars ($10.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration paid by the GRANTEE to the GRANTOR, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by 
these presents does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm to the GRANTEE, its successors and 
assigns forever, a Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement  (“Permanent Easement” or 
“Easement”) on, under, and across the real property legally described and depicted on Exhibit A 
(“Easement Area”) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, located in Larimer 
County, Colorado. The Easement granted is for the purposes of: 
 

1. Surveying, locating, installing, constructing, using, operating, maintaining, inspecting, 
repairing, altering, removing, and replacing one (1) or more buried water pipelines, in 
whole or in part, and all necessary subsurface and surface appurtenances for the 
transportation of water and the operation and control of water facilities; 

 
2. Marking the location of the Permanent Easement and pipeline or pipelines thereunder by 

suitable markers set and maintained in the ground at locations which shall not interfere with 
such reasonable use as GRANTOR shall make of the Permanent Easement under the terms 
of this Permanent Easement; 

 
3. Cutting and clearing trees, brush, debris and other obstructions on the Permanent Easement 

that might interfere with the operation and maintenance of GRANTEE’s activities and 
facilities within the Permanent Easement; and 

 
4. Access for purposes of maintaining, inspecting, repairing, altering, removing and replacing 

one (1) or more buried water pipelines across property owned by the GRANTOR that is 
contiguous to the Permanent Easement. Such access shall be limited to existing or future 
public and private roads located thereon where such roads are adequate for GRANTEE’s 
purposes.  If, as determined by GRANTEE at its sole discretion, there are no existing access 
roads providing reasonable access to the Easement Area, then GRANTEE may, at its sole 
cost and expense, install access roads within the Easement Area following written notice 
to GRANTOR. If at any time after GRANTEE installs an access road and GRANTEE 
determines there has become adequate and reasonable access through future public and/or 
private roads, then GRANTEE shall abandon the access roads it constructed, and shall use 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 2  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

the public and/or private roads. Abandonment shall consist of GRANTEE ceasing use of 
the access road and GRANTEE shall have no obligation to physically modify, remove or 
deconstruct any abandoned access road.  

 
The GRANTEE shall: 
 

5. Use commercially reasonable efforts to bury all pipe and communication and control cables 
to a minimum depth of 4 and one-half (4-1/2) feet at the time of construction so as not to 
interfere unreasonably with the uses of the Easement Area reserved to GRANTOR below; 
 

6. Use commercially reasonable efforts to restore the surface of the ground to its condition 
prior to installation, construction, maintenance, alteration, or replacement of the pipeline 
or pipelines and appurtenances thereto; 
 

7. Use commercially reasonable efforts to restore existing fences, drain tile, irrigation 
systems, private roads and other improvements to substantially the conditions existing prior 
to GRANTEE’s activities within the Permanent Easement;   
 

8. Pay the GRANTOR the actual damages to growing crops, livestock and other items caused 
by GRANTEE’s activities within the Permanent Easement;  
 

9. At least ten (10) days prior to the beginning of the water pipeline construction notify 
GRANTOR or its designee, in writing (which may be via email), of the GRANTEE’s intent 
to enter upon the property to begin construction of the water pipeline. After construction is 
completed and for purposes of operation and maintenance of the GRANTEE’s pipeline or 
appurtenances GRANTEE shall notify GRANTOR or its designee in writing, or other 
manner as may be mutually agreed (which may be via email), of GRANTEE’s intent to 
enter upon the EASEMENT; 
 

10. Restore or replace improvements made by the GRANTOR within the Easement with 
written consent by the GRANTEE (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or 
delayed), should those improvements be disturbed by the GRANTEE or GRANTEE’S 
water pipeline, on the condition that the GRANTOR pays the costs for such restoration or 
replacement.  If GRANTOR proposes to construct improvements within the Easement in 
connection with its development of the property, GRANTOR will provide GRANTEE 
written notice of such improvements, including reasonable detail concerning the extent and 
location of such improvements through the City of Fort Collins development review 
process, or that of any other land use jurisdiction that has authority at the time of 
development of the property.  GRANTEE will review and respond through the City of Fort 
Collins review process, and GRANTEE signature on development drawings shall serve as 
approval with non-signature serving as disapproval. If GRANTEE disapproves, the parties 
will work in good faith to address and make such reasonable modifications to the 
improvements as may be necessary to address GRANTEE concerns. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, GRANTOR, its successors and Assigns, shall be permitted, without consent 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 3  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

from GRANTEE, to construct the drainage trickle channels, inlets and spillways shown on 
the master drainage plan for the development of the property (Martin/Martin January 2019) 
as may be reasonably modified by GRANTOR or its successors and assigns so long as said 
modification(s) do not require GRANTEE to lower or otherwise alter its pipelines or 
otherwise interfere with any rights granted to GRANTEE or GRANTEE’s reasonable 
ability to exercise its rights granted by this Easement (subject to GRANTEE’s approval, 
not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), and in connection therewith, 
GRANTOR, and its successors and assigns, may alter the ground level within +/- 0.5' of 
the proposed grades shown in Montava/ELCO NEWT 3 conceptual grading plans, dated 
January 4, 2023. Any alterations in excess of +/- 0.5' shall require GRANTEE approval, as 
set forth above; and 
 

11. GRANTEE shall maintain (and shall cause its contractors and consultants present on the 
Property to maintain) a policy of commercial general liability insurance with a limit of at 
least Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) and including automobile liability and products 
liability and naming GRANTOR, and its designees, successors and assigns, and their 
respective parent, subsidiaries, and affiliates as an additional insured under such insurance 
policy.  The evidence of coverage shall be provided to GRANTOR prior to GRANTEE’s 
entry on the property and shall specifically state that coverage as it pertains to GRANTOR, 
shall be primary regardless of any other coverage which may be available to GRANTOR 
or the additional insureds.  All insurance coverage required in this paragraph shall be on 
an occurrence rather than a claims-made basis.  The policy shall be written so that 
GRANTOR and the additional insureds shall be notified at least thirty (30) days prior to 
the effective date of such cancellation or amendment.   
 
The GRANTOR reserves the right to use and occupy the surface and subsurface of the 

Easement Area for any purpose not inconsistent with the rights and privileges granted herein and 
which will not unreasonably interfere with or endanger any of the GRANTEE’S facilities on or 
under the Easement or GRANTEE’S use thereof, provided that in no event, without the prior 
written consent of the GRANTEE which shall be solely at the discretion of the GRANTEE, shall 
GRANTOR: 

 
12. Construct or allow the construction of any buildings or other structures (provided, however, 

that GRANTOR, and its successors and assigns shall be permitted to construct the 
improvements in connection with the stormwater detention facilities shown on the 
Martin/Martin Drainage report dated, January 2019, as may be reasonably modified by  
GRANTOR or its successors and assigns so long as said modification(s) do not require 
GRANTEE to lower or otherwise alter its pipelines or otherwise interfere with any rights 
granted to GRANTEE or GRANTEE’s reasonable ability to exercise its rights granted by 
this Easement (subject to GRANTEE’s approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed), including, the trickle channels, inlets and spillways); 
 

13. Impound water or other substance in, on or over the Easement (provided, however, that 
GRANTOR, and its successors and assigns shall be permitted to impound stormwater in 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 4  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

existing or further detention facilities as outlined in Martin/Martin Drainage report dated, 
January 2019 as may be reasonably modified by GRANTOR or its successors and assigns 
so long as said modification(s) do not require GRANTEE to lower or otherwise alter its 
pipelines or otherwise interfere with any rights granted to GRANTEE or GRANTEE’s 
reasonable ability to exercise its rights granted by this Easement (subject to GRANTEE’s 
approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed)); 

 
14. Plant trees, shrubs or other landscaping of any type that will exceed three (3) feet in height 

at mature growth within the Permanent Easement; 
 

15. Alter the ground level (except as permitted hereunder); 
 

16. Store or allow the storage of any equipment, materials or any other items on or across the 
Permanent Easement that unreasonably interferes with GRANTEE’S use of the Permanent 
Easement or ability to access their infrastructure within the Permanent Easement for the 
purposes described in this Agreement; 

 
17. Store or dispose of any dangerous, toxic, or hazardous substance on or under the Easement; 

 
18. Install, alter or replace any fence on the Easement, except at near right angles to the water 

pipeline(s) and provided that GRANTEE shall have the right to request and the GRANTOR 
shall install gates in any fences that cross the Easement; 

 
17. Grant subsurface or surface easements within the Easement Area to other utilities, cable 

service providers or any other entity for utilities and/or lines running parallel to 
GRANTEE’s water pipeline(s). 

 
18. Use the Easement for any purpose except agriculture or open areas without the prior written 

consent of GRANTEE; provided, however, the written consent of the GRANTEE will not 
be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned for the following uses: 

 
a.  Open space areas with or without landscaping but excluding fences (other than along 

property lines or as allowed elsewhere herein), retaining walls, and trees; 
 
b.  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced local roadways (not arterial roadways); 
 
c.  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced parking areas except use involving long-term 

storage; 
 
d.  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced recreation areas (excluding buildings) such as 

trails and bike paths;  
 
e.  Temporary covers or enclosures not requiring the construction of a foundation and not 

to be used for long-term storage; 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 5  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

 
f. Granting subsurface or surface easements within the Easement Area to other utility and 

cable service crossings at near right angles to the water pipeline with minimum two (2) 
feet of clearance between the utility/cable service and the water pipeline and further 
subject to industry standards for crossings that may be applicable. 

 
No Termination: The Easement shall not be terminated or extinguished by nonuse or 

abandonment.   
 

Governing Law; Enforcement:  This Agreement is subject to and is governed by the laws 
of the State of Colorado.    Enforcement of this Agreement may be by legal proceedings against 
any party violating any restriction, covenant, condition or agreement herein contained, either to 
restrain or enjoin such violation, obtain specific performance, or recover damages.     

 
No Rights to the Public:  This Agreement is not intended to, nor will it create any rights in 

the public to the Easement Area. 
 
No Waiver:  Failure of any party to exercise any of its rights hereunder shall not constitute 

a waiver or abandonment thereof. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not be deemed a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 
same or any other provision hereof. 

 
Modifications to Agreement: This Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing, 

duly executed and acknowledged by the GRANTEE and the owner of the Easement Area, and 
recorded in the real property records of Larimer County, Colorado. 

 
Entire Agreement: This Agreement, subject to the GRANTEE’S rules, regulations, 

standards and resolutions which are not in conflict with provisions hereof, contains the entire 
Agreement relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations hereunder assumed.  In the 
event any term or provision of this Agreement shall be held to be unenforceable for any reason 
whatsoever by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other term or provision hereof, and such provision shall be modified (to the 
extent possible) to match the parties’ intent.   

 
Obligations to Run with the Land:  The Easement, the rights and obligations of the parties, 

and the terms, rights, conditions, restrictions and limitations of this Agreement, shall run with and 
burden the GRANTOR’S Property, and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
GRANTOR and GRANTEE and the owners of the Easement Area, and their respective heirs, 
successors, and permitted assigns. 

 
 
 

 
[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 6  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

GRANTOR:    
THE ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION,  
a Missouri charitable trust   

 
By: COMMERCE BANK,  
AS CORPORATE TRUSTEE OF  
THE ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION, a Missouri 
charitable trust 

 
By: ________________________________ 
Name: ________________________________ 
Title: ______________________________ 

  
       
        
STATE OF ______________ ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of _____________2023, by 
___________________ on behalf of Commerce Bank, as Corporate Trustee of and on behalf of The 
Anheuser-Busch Foundation, a Missouri charitable trust. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:  ____________________ 
       
             ___________________________________ 
             Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 7  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANTEE: 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado  
 
 
By________________________________ 
    Loren Maxey, President 

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER ) 
 
  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this___ day of _____________, 2023, by 
Loren Maxey, as President of EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
  
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
       

________________________________ 
My Commission Expires:         Notary Public 
 
_____________________           
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 8  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

 
 
 
 
 

             GRANTEE: 
   NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER  
   DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the  
   State of Colorado 

ATTEST:            
             
______________________      ___________________________ 
Scott Cockroft, Secretary       Tad Stout, President 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  
   ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER  
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 2023, by 
Tad Stout, as President of the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _________________  
 
             _____________________________ 
              Notary Public 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  





Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 10  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

CONSENT BY POUDRE SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1 
 
 The undersigned being the holder of a contractual right that may affect the above-described 
property, hereby consents to the grant of the foregoing Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline 
Easement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of ________________, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

POUDRE SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1 
403 N. College Ave., Ste 410 
Fort Collins, CO 80524 
 

By: ___________________________________ 

Name: Rob Petterson 

Title: President, Board of Education 

  
 
STATE OF _________________ ) 
         ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

___________________, 2023, by Rob Petterson, President of Board of Education of POUDRE 

SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1. 

. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires:  ____________________ 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 

 
  



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 11  
4885-0946-4690, v. 1 

 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ TO PERMANENT EXCLUSIVE WATER PIPELINE EASEMENT 

 
Legal Description and Depiction of Permanent Easement 

 
 

 











 

 
 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

1 
 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction Easement 

 
 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT  
 

This Temporary Construction Easement is made this              day of ___________________, 
2023, by and between ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION, A MISSOURI CHARITABLE 
TRUST, whose address is One Busch Place, St. Louis, MO 63118 (“GRANTOR”), and the EAST 
LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado, whose address is 232 South Link Lane, Fort Collins, Colorado 
80524 and the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the 
State of Colorado, which has an  address of 33247 Highway 85, Lucerne, Colorado, 80646 (jointly, 
“GRANTEE”). 

 
GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100 dollars ($10.00) and 

other valuable consideration paid by the GRANTEE to the GRANTOR, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by this 
Temporary Construction Easement does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm to the 
GRANTEE, its successors and assigns forever, a nonexclusive temporary construction easement 
(the “Easement”) on, under and across the property described and depicted on Exhibit A (Property 
Description and Exhibit Map) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, located 
in Larimer County, Colorado (the “Easement Area”); for the purposes of : 
 

1.  Surveying, locating, installing and constructing a buried water pipeline on lands 
adjacent to the Easement Area, in whole or in part; 

 
2.  Cutting and clearing trees, brush, debris and other obstructions on the Easement 

Area that might interfere with GRANTEE’S activities on the Property; and 
 

3.  Access for purposes of surveying, locating, installing and constructing a buried 
water pipeline across property owned by the GRANTOR that is contiguous to the 
Easement Area with the GRANTOR’S consent, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

 
The term of this Easement shall begin on the first day construction activities for the water 

pipeline within the area adjacent to the Easement Area begins. The term of this Easement ends on 
the last day construction activities for the water pipeline occur, but no later than one (1) year after 
the first day construction activities for the water pipeline begin.  

 
During the term of this Easement GRANTOR shall not place, erect, install or permit any 



 

 
 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

2 
 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction Easement 

above or below ground building, structure or other obstruction on the Easement that may interfere 
with the GRANTEE’S activities on the Easement Area hereunder. 
  
The GRANTEE shall: 
 

4.  Use commercially reasonable efforts to, restore the surface of the ground to its 
condition prior to installation, construction, maintenance, alteration, or replacement 
of the pipeline or pipelines and appurtenances thereto; 

 
5.  Use commercially reasonable efforts to, restore fences, drain tile, irrigation 

systems, landscaping, private roads and other improvements, to the conditions 
existing prior to GRANTEE’S activities on the Easement;  

 
6. Pay the GRANTOR the actual damages to growing crops, livestock and other 

items caused by GRANTEE’S activities on the Easement; 
 

7. At least ten (10) days prior to the beginning of the water pipeline construction 
notify GRANTOR or its designee, in writing (which may be via email), of the 
GRANTEE’s intent to enter upon the property to begin construction of the water 
pipeline. After construction is completed and for purposes of operation and 
maintenance of the GRANTEE’s pipeline or appurtenances GRANTEE shall 
notify GRANTOR or its designee in writing, or other manner as may be mutually 
agreed (which may be via email), of GRANTEE’s intent to enter upon the 
EASEMENT; 

 
8. GRANTEE shall maintain (and shall cause its contractors and consultants present 

on the Property to maintain) a policy of commercial general liability insurance 
with a limit of at least Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) and including 
automobile liability and products liability and naming GRANTOR, and its 
designees, successors and assigns, and their respective parent, subsidiaries, and 
affiliates as an additional insured under such insurance policy.  The evidence of 
coverage shall be provided to GRANTOR prior to GRANTEE’s entry on the 
property and shall specifically state that coverage as it pertains to GRANTOR, 
shall be primary regardless of any other coverage which may be available to 
GRANTOR or the additional insureds.  All insurance coverage required in this 
paragraph shall be on an occurrence rather than a claims-made basis.  The policy 
shall be written so that GRANTOR and the additional insureds shall be notified at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such cancellation or 



 

 
 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

3 
 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction Easement 

amendment.   
 
 

 
The GRANTOR reserves the right to use and occupy the surface and subsurface of the 

Easement Area for any purpose not inconsistent with the rights and privileges granted herein which 
will not unreasonably interfere with or endanger any of the GRANTEE’S facilities on or under the 
Easement or GRANTEE’S use thereof. 

 
GRANTOR warrants and will forever defend the title to the Easement Area against all 

those claiming through GRANTOR, subject to prior rights. The easements and covenants 
contained herein shall run with the land and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
respective successors and assigns of GRANTOR and GRANTEE. 
 
        

[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 
        



 
(06/18/09) 

4 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

GRANTOR:    
THE ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION,  
a Missouri charitable trust   

 
By: COMMERCE BANK,  
AS CORPORATE TRUSTEE OF  
THE ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION, a Missouri 
charitable trust 

 
By: ________________________________ 
Name: ________________________________ 
Title: ______________________________ 

  
       
        
STATE OF ______________ ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of _____________2023, by 
___________________ on behalf of Commerce Bank, as Corporate Trustee of and on behalf of 
The Anheuser-Busch Foundation, a Missouri charitable trust. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:  ____________________ 
       
            
 ___________________________________ 
            
 Notary Public 
 

  



 
(06/18/09) 

5 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANTEE: 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado  
 
 
By________________________________ 
    Loren Maxey, President 

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER ) 
 
  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 
_____________________, 2023, by Loren Maxey, as President of EAST LARIMER COUNTY 
WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado. 
  
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:  ____________________ 
 
       
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
(06/18/09) 

6 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

 
 
 
      GRANTEE: 

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER  
 DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the  
 State of Colorado 

ATTEST:            
          
______________________   ___________________________ 
Scott Cockroft, Secretary   Tad Stout, President 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  
   ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER  
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 2023, by 
Tad Stout, as President of the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _________________  
 
             
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 

  





 
(06/18/09) 

8 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

CONSENT BY POUDRE SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1 
 
 The undersigned being the holder of a contractual right that may affect the above-described 
property, hereby consents to the grant of the foregoing Temporary Construction Easement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of ________________, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

POUDRE SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1 
403 N. College Ave., Ste 410 
Fort Collins, CO 80524 
 

By: ___________________________________ 

Name: Rob Petterson 

Title: President, Board of Education 

  
 
STATE OF _________________ ) 
         ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

___________________, 2023, by Rob Petterson, President of Board of Education of POUDRE 

SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1. 

. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires:  ____________________ 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
  



 
(06/18/09) 

9 
4875-1718-4370, v. 1 

 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ TO TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

 
Legal Description and Depiction of Temporary Construction Easement 

 
[To be attached] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









44 COOK STREET, SUITE 705, DENVER, CO 80206 

 
 
 
 
 
August 9, 2023 
 
North Weld County Water District  
Attn: Tad Stout, Board Chair 
PO Box 56 
Lucerne, CO 80646 
 
RE:  Lease Offer for Unleased Minerals 

 

Dear Interest Owner: 

Nickel Road Operating LLC (“NRO”) is an Oil and Gas Operator in Weld County Colorado that recently drilled the 

Blehm wells in 7N-R67W- Sec.7, 8, 9 and 10 south and east of your mineral rights. NRO through its subsidiary 

Nickel Road Development LLC (“NRD”), is offering to lease your minerals in T7N-R67W, Section 6 for the 

development of the minerals that you own. NRO will assume all expenses associated with the working interest in 

any wells drilled by entering into an oil and gas lease with you, as lessor, and NRD, as lessee, at the following 

terms: 

- Non- Surface Occupancy 

- 20% royalty 

- 4 year primary term / 3 year extension @ 100% of the original bonus paid at time of extension 

- $1,400.00 per net acre lease bonus 

o Our records indicate you own 3.200 net mineral acres (“NMA”) for a $4,480.00 total lease 

bonus. The bonus will be paid on a per NMA basis according to our final title examination. 

- This offer to lease is applicable through September 1, 2023 

If the lease is acceptable to you, please sign in the presence of a notary public and also sign the enclosed 
W9 for tax purposes and return to our office in the provided envelope. We are not able to issue you your bonus 
payment until we have a signed W9 in our possession. We will send you the total lease bonus within 30 days of 
returning the fully executed lease to our office. We also buy mineral rights and if you would prefer to sell your 
mineral interest, please contact me at the information below for a quote. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this letter or the proposed operations, please contact me at 970-590-2343 
or at blake.leavitt@nickelroadoperating.com at your earliest convenience. 
 
 

                                                                                                Accepted and Agreed to this __ day of August, 2023 
 
Respectfully,      North Weld County Water District 
 

_________________________________ 
Blake Leavitt- CPL     Name:  Tad Stout 
VP- Land      Title:  Board Chair 
        

mailto:blake.leavitt@nickelroadoperating.com


PAID-UP OIL & GAS LEASE 
(No Surface Occupancy) 

Producers 88  
(Paid-Up) 
 

 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is entered into this 9th day of August, 2023 between North Weld County Water District, as Lessor 
whose address is PO Box 56, Lucerne, CO 80646, and Nickel Road Development LLC, as Lessee, whose address is 44 Cook Street, 
Suite 705, Denver, Colorado 80206. 
 
 1. Description.  Lessor, in consideration of Ten and more Dollars ($10.00 & more), in hand paid, the royalties herein provided and 
the covenants herein contained, hereby grants, leases and lets exclusively to Lessee, for the purpose of exploring for, geophysically or 
by other means (whether now known or not), developing, producing and marketing oil and gas of any nature or kind, along with all 
hydrocarbon and nonhydrocarbon substances, whether liquid or gaseous, produced in association therewith including sulphur, helium, 
carbon dioxide, nitrogen and other commercial gases as well as hydrocarbon gases (collectively referred to herein as “covered minerals”), 
and marketing or rendering more marketable or more valuable the covered minerals, the following described land together with any 
reversionary rights, riparian rights and after acquired interest therein (the “leased premises”) in Weld County, Colorado: 
 

Township 7 North, Range 67 West, 6th P.M. 
Section 6: Part of the NW4SW4 & NE4SW4 being more particularly described as follows: Lot A, Recorded Exemption No. 

0705-6-3-RE-4859, according to the map recorded February 16, 2010 at Reception No 3676196, being a part of 
the SW/4 

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this lease, it is expressly understood and agreed that lessee 
shall have no right hereunder, whatsoever, to enter upon or us the surface of any of the lands leased hereunder. 

 
This lease also covers all property acquired by prescription or accretion, as well as any small strips or parcels of land now or hereafter 
acquired by Lessor other than by purchase or exchange which are contiguous or adjacent to the leased premises, whether or not such 
parcels are known to exist by Lessor or Lessee, and for the aforementioned consideration, Lessor agrees to execute at Lessee’s request 
any additional or supplemental instruments for a more complete or accurate description of the land so covered.  To determine the amount 
of any shut-in royalties, the leased premises shall be deemed comprised of   6.405  acres, whether it comprises more or less. 
 
 2. Term of Lease. This lease shall be in force for a primary term of  4 years  from the effective date of this lease, and for as long 
thereafter as either: (a) any covered minerals are being produced from the leased premises or from lands pooled, unitized or otherwise 
combined therewith; or (b) Operations, as defined in paragraph 4 below, are being conducted upon the leased premises (subsurface 
activities, to the extent permitted by paragraph 2) or on lands pooled, unitized or otherwise combined therewith with no cessation of more 
than one-hundred eighty (180) consecutive days; or (c) this lease is otherwise maintained in effect under the provisions hereof.  This 
lease is a “paid-up” lease requiring no rentals be paid to Lessor.  Further, no shut-in royalty payments are required during the primary 
term.  
 
 3. Royalty Payment.  Royalties on covered minerals produced and saved from the leased premises and either sold or used off the 
leased premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith, shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor: (a) for oil and other liquid hydrocarbons, the 
royalty shall be 20% of the amount realized by Lessee in the first sale of such production to a non-affiliate, and (b) for natural gas of any 
nature or kind (including casinghead gas) and all other covered minerals (including liquid hydrocarbons suspended in gas not separated 
at the primary separation facilities), the royalty shall be 20% of the gross sales value of all gas produced from the Leased Premises based 
on the price received by Lessee or Affiliate of Lessee from an independent, non-affiliated, third party purchaser for the product in 
marketable condition (“Arm’s Length Contract”), including all bonuses, premiums, allowances or other consideration of any nature 
received by Lessee for gas produced or contracted from the Leased Premises. In calculating royalties on all production, Lessee may 
deduct Lessor’s proportionate part of any taxes such as ad valorem, production, severance and excise taxes or other similar taxes as 
imposed on or measured by production. Lessee agrees to use reasonable diligence to produce, utilize, and market the covered minerals 
capable of being produced from said wells, but in exercising such diligence, Lessee shall not be obligated to install or furnish facilities 
beyond the minimum necessary to accomplish such tasks. Any payment of royalties may be made by check or draft of Lessee deposited 
in the mail or delivered to the party entitled to receive payment by the last date for payment.  Nothing shall impair Lessee’s right to release 
any portion of the leased premises as provided in paragraph 12. If a divided interest (as opposed to an undivided interest) is assigned in 
this lease, liability for royalty payments shall rest exclusively on the then owners of this lease, severally as to the acreage owned by each. 
 
 4. Operations.  Whenever used in this lease, the word “Operations” (unless specified to the contrary) shall mean drilling, testing, 
completing, reworking, recompleting, deepening, plugging back, permanently plugging, repairing, perforating, fracturing or dewatering a 
well located beneath or off the leased premises in an effort to find, obtain, increase, or restore production of oil, gas, sulphur or other 
covered minerals from the leased premises.   
 
 5. Shut-in Royalty.  If at or after the primary term one or more wells on the leased premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith 
are capable of producing oil and gas substances in paying quantities, but such well or wells are shut in or production therefrom is not 
being sold by Lessee, such well or wells shall be deemed to be producing in paying quantities and shall maintain the lease upon 
compliance with the requirements of this paragraph 6. If for 90 consecutive days such well or wells are shut in or production therefrom is 
not sold by Lessee, then Lessee shall pay an aggregate shut-in royalty of ten dollars ($10) per acre then covered by this lease.  The 
payment shall be made to Lessor by the first anniversary date of the lease following the end of the 90-day period and thereafter by each 
anniversary while the well or wells are shut in or production therefrom is not being sold by Lessee; provided that if this lease is otherwise 
being maintained by operations under this lease, or if production is being sold by Lessee from another well or wells on the leased premises 
or lands pooled or unitized therewith, no shut-in royalty shall be due until the first anniversary date of the lease following the end of the 



2 

 

90-day period after the end of the period next following the cessation of such operations or production.  Lessee’s failure to properly pay 
shut-in royalty shall render Lessee liable for the amount due, but shall not operate to terminate this lease.  This lease shall not be 
maintained by the payment of shut-in royalties for any period of more than twenty four (24) consecutive months following the shutting in 
of a well, but this right to maintain this lease for such period of time shall be a recurring right and may be exercised and from time to time 
whenever Lessee finds it necessary or expedient to shut in such well or wells.   
 
 6. Pooling.  Lessee shall have the continuing and recurring right, but not the obligation, to pool or otherwise combine all or any part 
of the leased premises or interest therein with any other lands, leases or interest, as to any or all depths or zones, and as to any or all 
covered minerals, either before or after the commencement of production, whenever Lessee, in its sole discretion, deems it necessary or 
proper to do so in order to prudently explore, develop or operate the leased premises or to comply with a pooling order of any governmental 
authority having jurisdiction over such matters, whether or not similar pooling authority exists regarding such other lands, leases or 
interests.  A pooled unit formed by such pooling for an oil well which is not a horizontal completion shall not exceed eighty (80) acres plus 
a maximum acreage tolerance of ten percent (10%), and for an oil well which is a horizontal completion or a gas well shall not exceed 
twelve hundred and eighty (1280) acres plus a maximum acreage tolerance of ten percent (10%); provided that larger pooled units may 
be formed for an oil well or a gas well, whether or not horizontally completed, in order to conform to any well spacing or density pattern 
permitted by any governmental authority having jurisdiction over such matters. Irrespective of the proceeding limits, in no event shall a 
pooled unit exceed the size allowed by the Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission.  The terms “oil well” and “gas well” shall 
have the meanings prescribed by applicable law or by regulations of the governmental authority which has jurisdiction over such matters.  
The term “horizontal completion” shall mean an oil well or a gas well in which the horizontal component of the gross completion interval 
exceeds one hundred (100) feet in length.  Lessee may pool or combine the lands covered by this lease or any portions thereof, as above 
provided as to oil in any one or more strata and as to gas in any one or more strata. Units formed by pooling as to any stratum or strata 
need not conform in size or area with pooled units formed as to any other stratum or strata, and oil units need not conform as to area with 
gas units.  To exercise its pooling rights, Lessee shall file of record a written declaration describing the pooled unit, and the effective date 
of pooling shall be the date of filing unless provided otherwise in such declaration.  Operations or production from anywhere on a pooled 
unit which includes all or any part of the leased premises, shall be considered for all purposes (except the payment of royalties on 
production from the poo   led unit) as if they were Operations conducted on or production from such part of the leased premises. There 
shall be allocated to the land covered by this lease included in any such pooled unit that portion of the total production of the pooled 
minerals from wells in the unit, after deducting any used in lease or unit operations, which the acreage in the land covered by this lease 
and contained in the unit bears to the total number of surface acres in the unit.  The production so allocated shall be considered for all 
purposes, including the payment or delivery of royalty, to be the entire production of pooled minerals from the portion of the land covered 
and included in the unit as though produced from the land under this lease. Pooling in one or more instances shall not exhaust Lessee’s 
pooling rights, and Lessee shall, without the joinder of Lessor, have the recurring right but not the obligation to revise any pooled unit 
formed by expansion or contraction or both, either before or after commencement of production, to conform to the well spacing or density 
pattern permitted by the governmental authority having jurisdiction, or to conform to any productive acreage determination made by such 
governmental authority, or court order, or in the sole reasonable judgment of Lessee, to promote the conservation of covered minerals in 
and under and that may be produced from the leased premises.  In making such a revision, Lessee shall file of record a written declaration 
describing the revised pooled unit and the effective date of revision shall be the date of filing unless provided otherwise in such declaration. 
To the extent any portion of the leased premises included in or excluded from a pooled unit by such revision, the proportion of pooled unit 
production on which royalties are payable shall thereafter be adjusted and such adjustment shall be made effective as of the effective 
date of the revision. Lessee may dissolve any pooled unit formed by filing a written declaration describing the pooled unit, and the effective 
date of dissolution shall be the date of filing unless provided otherwise in such declaration.  If this lease now or hereafter covers separate 
tracts, no pooling of royalty interests as between any such separate tracts is intended or shall be implied or result merely from including 
such separate tracts within this lease, but Lessee may nevertheless pool as provided in this paragraph with consequent allocation of 
production as provided. The words “separate tract” mean any tract with royalty ownership differing, now or hereafter, either as to parties 
or amounts, from that on any other part of the leased premises.  Pooling shall not constitute a cross-conveyance of interests. 
 
 7. Unitization.   Lessee shall have the continuing and recurring right, but not the obligation, to unitize all or any part of the leased 
premises or interest therein with any other lands, leases or interests, as to any or all depths or zones, and as to any or all covered 
minerals, either before or after the commencement of production, to constitute a unit or units whenever, in Lessee’s sole judgment, such 
unitization may prevent waste or promote and encourage the conservation of oil and gas by any cooperative or unit plan of development 
or operation or by a cycling, pressure-maintenance, re-pressuring or secondary recovery program.  Any such unit formed shall comply 
with local, State and Federal laws and with orders, rules, and regulation of State or Federal regulatory or conservation agency having 
jurisdiction.  The size of any such unit may be increased by including acreage believed to be productive, and decreased by excluding 
acreage believed to be unproductive, or where the owners of which do not join the unit, but any such change resulting in an increase or 
decrease of Lessor’s royalty shall not be retroactive. Any such unit may be established, enlarged or dim inished and in the absence of 
production from the unit area, may be abolished and dissolved by filing of record an instrument so declaring. Operations anywhere on 
any part of a unit which includes all or any part of the leased premises shall be treated for all purposes as if they were Operations on the 
leased premises; references in this lease to production from or Operations on the leased premises shall be deemed to include production 
from or Operations on any portion of such unit. Lessee shall allocate to the portion of the leased premises in any such unit a fractional 
part of production from such unit on any of the following bases: (a) the ratio between the participating acreage in the leased premises in 
such units and the total of all participating acreage in the unit, or (b) any other basis approved by State or Federal authorities having 
jurisdiction over such matters.  Lessor shall be entitled to the royalties provided under this lease by the unit production so allocated to 
that part of the leased premises in such unit and no more. 
 

8. Ancillary Rights.  Lessee shall have free use of oil, gas and other substances, except water, produced from the leased premises 
for exploring, developing, producing or marketing production from the leased premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith, and 
Lessor’s royalty shall be computed after deducting any produced oil or gas so used. 
  
 9. Ownership Changes.  The interest of either Lessor or Lessee may be assigned or otherwise transferred in whole or in part, by 
area or by depth or zone, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall extend to their respective heirs, devisees, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns.  No change in Lessor’s ownership shall have the effect of reducing the rights or enlarging the 



3 

 

obligations of Lessee, and no change in ownership shall bind Lessee until sixty (60) days after Lessee has been furnished with notice, 
including copies of the recorded documents establishing a complete chain of record title from Lessor to the reasonable satisfaction of 
Lessee. If a person entitled to shut-in royalties dies, Lessee may pay or tender such shut-in royalties to the credit of decedent or decedent’s 
estate. If two (2) or more persons are entitled to shut-in royalties, Lessee may pay or tender such shut-in royalties to such persons, either 
jointly or separately, in proportion to the interest which each owns.    If Lessee transfers the entire interest in all or any portion of the area 
covered by this lease, the obligation to pay or tender shut in royalties hereunder shall be divided between Lessee and the transferee in 
proportion to the net acreage in this lease then held by each.  
 
 10. Warranty of Title.  Lessor hereby warrants and agrees to defend the title to the lands herein described, and agrees that the 
Lessee, at its option, may pay or discharge any tax, mortgage or lien existing, levied or assessed against the leased premises and, if it 
does so, Lessee shall be subrogated to the rights of the party to whom payment is made and, besides its other rights, may reimburse 
itself out of any royalties or shut-in royalties otherwise payable to Lessor. If Lessee knows any claim inconsistent with Lessor’s title, 
Lessee may suspend the payment of royalties or shut-in royalties, without interest, until Lessee has been furnished satisfactory evidence 
that such claim has been resolved. 
 
 11.  Payment Reductions.  If Lessor owns less than the full mineral estate in all or any part of the leased premises, payment of 
royalties and shut-in royalties, or other payment attributable to the mineral interest shall be reduced proportionately to the amount that 
Lessor’s interest in the leased premises bears to the entire mineral estate in the leased premises. To the extent any royalty or other 
payment attributable to the mineral interest covered by this lease is payable to someone other than Lessor, such royalty or other payment 
shall be deducted from the corresponding amount otherwise payable to Lessor.   
 
 12.  Release of Lease.  Lessee may from time to time deliver to Lessor or file of record a written release of this lease as to all or 
any portion of the leased premises, and shall thereafter be relieved of all obligations thereafter arising regarding the interest so released.  
If Lessee releases all or an undivided interest in less than all of the area covered, Lessee’s obligation to pay or tender shut-in royalties 
shall be proportionately reduced in accordance with the net acreage interest retained.  
 
   13.  Regulation or Delay.   Lessee’s obligation under the lease, shall be subject to all laws, rules, regulation and orders of any 
governmental authority having jurisdiction including restrictions on the drilling and production of wells.  Notwithstanding paragraph 2 
above, when Operations are prevented or delayed by fire, flood, adverse weather conditions, war, sabotage, rebellion, insurrection, riot, 
strike or labor disputes, or by failure of purchasers or carriers to take or transport such production, or by any other cause not reasonably 
within Lessee’s control (commonly referred to as “force majeure”), then while so prevented, Lessee’s duty shall be suspended, and 
Lessee shall not be liable for failure to comply therewith; and this lease shall be extended while and so long as Lessee is prevented by 
any such cause from conducting drilling or re-working operations or from producing oil or gas and, at Lessee’s option, the period of such 
prevention or delay shall be added to the term or any period for performance of Lessee’s rights or obligations.  Lessee shall not be liable 
for breach of any terms of this lease if the breach is due to force majeure conditions.  
 
 14.  Breach or Default.  An alleged breach or default by Lessee of any obligation or the failure of Lessee to satisfy any condition or 
limitation contained herein shall not work a forfeiture or termination of this lease or cause a termination or reversion of the estate created 
nor be grounds for cancellation in whole or in part, and no litigation shall be initiated by Lessor regarding any alleged breach or default 
by Lessee, for a period of at least ninety (90) days after Lessor has given Lessee written notice fully describing the breach or default, and 
if Lessee does not dispute the breach, then only if Lessee fails to remedy the breach or default within such period.  If Lessee disputes 
that a breach has occurred and the matter is litigated and there is a final un-appealable judicial determination that a breach or default has 
occurred, this lease shall not be forfeited or canceled in whole or in part unless Lessee is given a reasonable time after said judicial 
determination to remedy the breach or default and Lessee fails to do so.  If this lease is canceled for any cause, other than in the case of 
breach or default, it shall nevertheless remain in force and effect as to the interest in and to each wellbore as to which there are Operations 
or production and Lessee shall also have such easements on said leased premises or lands pooled therewith as are necessary to conduct 
Operation on each wellbore.  Nothing in this instrument or in the relationship created shall be construed to establish a fiduciary 
relationship, a relationship of trust or confidence or a principal-agent relationship between Lessor and Lessee for any purpose.  Lessee’s 
standard of conduct shall be that of a reasonable prudent operator.   
   
 15. Option to Extend.  Lessor grants Lessee the option to extend the primary term of this lease for an additional Three (3) years on 
the expiration of the original primary term on all or any portion of the leased premises then held which would expire unless so extended.  
This option may be exercised by Lessee or its successors and assigns before the expiration of the primary term by paying to Lessor an 
amount equal to 100% of the initial bonus paid upon execution of this lease, on a net mineral acre basis, for each net mineral acre so 
extended, which payment shall cover the Three (3) years of the extended term and, Lessor acknowledges there will not be rental payments 
due for or during the extended term.  Payment may be made by check or draft mailed or delivered to Lessor.  Should this option be 
exercised as provided, Lessee may execute and file of record an instrument evidencing the exercise of this option. 
 
 16. Preferential Right.  If while this lease is in effect (but not over seven (7) years after the effective date of the lease) Lessor 
receives a bona fide offer from any party to purchase a new lease covering all or any part of the leased premises then covered by this 
lease, and if Lessor intends to accept such offer, then Lessor shall promptly notify Lessee in writing of the name and address of the 
offeror, all terms and conditions of the offer, including any lease bonus offered, and shall provide Lessee with a copy of the offer and the 
proposed lease.  Lessee shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to exercise a preferential right to purchase a new lease 
from Lessor under the terms and conditions of the offer, by giving Lessor written notice of such exercise.  Promptly thereafter, Lessee 
shall furnish to Lessor the new lease for execution, with a time draft for the lease bonus conditioned upon execution and delivery of the 
lease by Lessor and approval of title by Lessee, all under the terms of the draft.  Whether or not Lessee exercises its preferential right, 
then as long as if this lease remains in effect any new lease from Lessor shall be subordinate to this lease and shall not be construed as 
replacing or adding to Lessee’s obligations. 
 
 
 



4 

 

 
17.  Miscellaneous.   
 (a)  Entire Agreement.  This lease supersedes and replaces all prior agreements, both oral and written, between the parties regarding 
the leased premises.  This lease may only be amended by a subsequent written instrument executed by both Lessor and Lessee. 
 (b)  Captions.  The captions used in the lease are solely for convenience of the parties hereto and shall have no significance, separate 
and apart, from the terms and provisions of the lease. 
 (c)  Severability.  If any term or other provision of this lease is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced under any rule of law, all 
other conditions and provisions of this lease shall remain in full force and effect. 
 (d)  Choice of Law.  THIS LEASE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE 
STATE OF COLORADO (EXCLUSIVE OF ANY PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAWS WHICH WOULD DIRECT APPLICATION OF 
THE SUBSTANTIVE LAWS OF ANOTHER JURISDICTION). 
 (e)  Counterparts.  This lease may be executed in any number of counterparts and by each of the parties hereto in separate 
counterparts, all such counterparts together constituting but one (1) and the same instrument. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this lease is executed effective the date first written above, and upon execution shall bind the signatories, their 
successors and assigns.  
 
LESSOR:  
 
North Weld County Water District 
 
 
 
By:_                                                                                       ________________________________________  
Name:   Tad Stout 
Title:      Board Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF                                  ) 
  )   ss. 
COUNTY OF ______________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ______________, 2023, by 
______________________________________________, known to me to be the person or persons whose names are 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that the same was executed and delivered as their free and voluntary 
act for the purposes therein set forth.  In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal as of the date herein above 
stated.  
  
 
My commission expires:   ________________________________________ 
    Notary Public 
 



Form    W-9
(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

▶ Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the  
requester. Do not 
send to the IRS.

P
ri

nt
 o

r 
ty

p
e.

 
S

ee
 S

p
ec

ifi
c 

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

p
ag

e 
3.

1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 
following seven boxes. 

Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC

 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) ▶ 

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.  Do not check 
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

Other (see instructions) ▶ 

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

 code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

6  City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7  List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

– –

or
Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 
U.S. person ▶ Date ▶

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight

Blake Leavit - NRO
Highlight







8.  Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to enter  
     into Executive Session for the following purposes:      
     Receiving legal advice and discussing matters subject to  
     negotiation and strategy pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e),  
     C.R.S. related to The Ridge Commercial Development  

  



Request for Extension of Time to File Audit for Year End
ONLY

Requests may be submitted via internet portal: https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg.

Government Name: North Weld County Water District

Name of Contact: Eric Reckentine

Address: 32825 CO Road 39

City/Zip Code Lucerne, CO 80646

Phone Number: 970-356-3020

E-mail ericr@nwcwd.org

Fiscal Year Ending (mm/dd/yyyy): December 31, 2022

Amount of Time Requested (in days):
(Not to exceed 60 calendar days)

60 days
Audit Due:

September 30, 2023

Comments (optional):

I understand that if the audit is not submitted within the approved extension of time, the                 
government named in the extension request will be considered in default without further notice, 
and the State Auditor shall take further action as prescribed by Section 29-1-606(5)(b), C.R.S.

Must be signed by a member of the governing board.

Signature

Printed Name: Tad Stout

Title: President

Date: July 25, 2023

meredith_yoder
Approved





 Thornton Northern Proper�es Stewardship Plan 
 Upcoming Community Mee�ng 

 Date:  Monday, August 14, 2023 
 Time:  5:30-7:00 pm 
 Loca�on:  Eaton Area Community Center  (  1675 3rd St,  Eaton, CO 80615  ) 

 Please join us on  Monday  August 14, 2023  from  5:30-7:00  pm  at the  Eaton Area Community Center  to learn 
 more about the  Thornton Northern Proper�es Stewardship  Plan  ! This will be the second and final Community 
 Mee�ng where  the project team will review land use  and water op�miza�on informa�on including updated 
 maps and dra� Thornton NPSP elements. Informa�on will be provided on next steps and how community 
 members can stay informed as this Plan comes to a close. 

 Background 
 The City of Thornton owns approximately 18,000 acres of agricultural proper�es in Larimer and Weld coun�es, 
 which Thornton purchased for the water rights in the mid-1980s. Thornton is responsible for the management 
 and eventual dives�ture of its northern proper�es, and has gathered an abundance of community and 
 stakeholder input over the past 18 months to help inform Thornton’s future land use decisions. Thornton’s vision 
 is to be an engaged landowner, respec�ng the needs and interests of the Northern Communi�es as it works to 
 secure its decreed water rights. 

 Land Management and Divestment Strategies 
 Through a community-driven land use planning effort and a future-oriented lens, Thornton has iden�fied 
 poten�al land uses for its proper�es that strive to be consistent with community plans and aspira�ons. Since 
 November 2021 the City of Thornton has engaged a diverse Steering Commi�ee and numerous other 
 stakeholder groups in order to consider poten�al: 

 future land uses 
 development 
 opportuni�es 

 conserva�on 
 opportuni�es 

 water use, alloca�on, and 
 op�miza�on strategies 

 These recommenda�ons, when finalized in 2023, will guide Thornton as it pursues its management and 
 divestment goals for these proper�es. 

 To learn more about the City of Thornton’s Northern Proper�es Stewardship Plan, visit our website 
 www.thorntonco.gov 

https://goo.gl/maps/8R5uoUH38n5bj3YNA
https://www.thorntonco.gov/government/infrastructure/water/NPSP/Pages/resources.aspx


Last exported to pdf from ArcGIS Pro by brobeson on 8/1/2023, 1:47 PM.

1252 Commerce Drive
Laramie, WY 82070
www.trihydro.com

(P) 307/745.7474 (F) 307/745.7729

File: 2_CIP_2023

\\T
R

IH
Y

D
R

O
.C

O
M

\C
LI

E
N

T
S

\IT
O

N
\N

W
C

W
D

\G
IS

\M
A

P
P

IN
G

\2
02

3_
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

\N
W

C
W

D
_2

02
3_

P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
.A

P
R

X

Date: 8/1/23Scale: 1" = 3 MilesChecked By: JGDrawn By: BR

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
LUCERNE, COLORADO

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

FIGURE  2

0 3 Miles


EXPLANATION

k9 STORAGE TANK

PUMP STATION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
(CIP) LOCATION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
(CIP) EXTENT

12" OR LARGER WATER LINE

DISTRICT BOUNDARY

EXCLUDED FROM DISTRICT

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

NEWT 3 Alignment (42")

Greeley - NWCWD Interconnect (24")

Highway 85 Replacement (4")

CR 84 Small Diameter Water Line (6")

Eaton Phase II (30")

Zone 1 Alignment (42")

Eaton Phase III (30")

Zone 1 Utilities

Timnath Culvert Crossing (36")

24''

24
''

30''

12''

12''

30''

16
''

12''

14
''

16''

12''

12''
24
''

24''

12''

16
''

14
''

16''

16
''

16
''

12''

16
''

24''

12
''

18''

12
''

16
''

12
'' 12''

12
''

12
''

12''

42''

20'' 12''16''

16''

16''

12
''

36''

12'' 12''

T-2

T-1A

T-6

T-4

T-5N

T-7

T-1B

T-5S

PS-4

PS-1
PS-7

PS-6

Summit View

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA, Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

DRAFT



1 
 

To: Board of Directors North Weld County Water District 

From: Eric Reckentine 

December 12, 2023 

 

North Weld County Water District 2023 Budget Memo 

 

Total district water usage growth is projected to increase at approximately 0.5% for the next 3 years and 

at approximately 1% starting in 2027. 

• Commercial water usage is projected as flat to 2021 volumes for next 5 years . 

• Wholesale Water Accounts are projected at approximately 0.5% water usage increases for the 

next 5 years and the three towns associated with the Group treatment plant usage volumes are 

projected as flat starting in 2027.  

• District residential water usage is projected at approximately 0.5% water usage increase 

annually for the next three years. 

Revenue  

Meter sale revenue is anticipated to increase from approximately $16.5 million in 2022 budget to $18 

million in 2023.  The 2023 forecast projects approximately $18 million in metered revenues.   

• Rate increase projections for all customer classes is at 7% for next ten years. 

• Towns out of compliance with storage requirements are projected at residential rates for next 
two years. 

• Water allocation surcharges are projected at $6.00/1000 gallons. 

• Plant investment surcharges are projected at $3.85/1000 gallons. 

• Plant Investment sales are projected at 150 PI’s annually for 5 years .  

• Cash in Lieu sales are projected at 10 units at $62,500, recommend raising cost to $73,500 per 

unit. 

• Plant Investment Fee is currently projected at $17,650 per PI not counting distance fee. 

Recommend Honey Creek Consulting review and recommend appropriate rate based upon 

revised CIP. 

Expenses  

Operations Maintenance, Administration 2023 budget is projected at approximately $9.4 million which 

is approximately $400,000 increase to 2022 budget and flat to 2023 forecast.  

Labor costs are projected to increase from 2022 to 2023 by 10%, that includes a 5% employee cost of 

living increase.  

District anticipates acquiring two replacement fleet vehicles in 2023 and an additional backhoe, John 

Deere 135p for $200,000 in total.  



2 
 

Solider Canyon Filter Plant treatment costs rate increase of $500,000 for 2023, see attached SCWTA 

budget memo.   

Capital improvement project costs for 2023 are projected at approximately $28.2 million compared to 

2022 budget of $26.5 million.  Forecast for 2023 is capital improvement projects is projected at $12.5 

million to date.  This is a reflection on supply chain issues in relation to potential NEWT III pipeline 

project and Eaton Pipeline project starts and reflects only potential material orders and water rights 

acquisition. This number may be adjusted prior to final budget if materials are acquired, and three Tank 

rehab projects start.  

Capital Improvements projects costs have been projected at 30% cost increase for the duration of the 

projects based upon rapid increase in material costs. The anticipated capital improvement ten-year 

forecast is approximately $200 million that includes approximately $60 million in water rights 

acquisition.  

System 

• North Weld East Larimer County (NEWT) III transmission line permitting, and construction 

projected cost of $8 million for 2023 and $8 million for 2024. 

• Eaton Pipeline Phase 2 two mile 30-inch distribution construction projected cost of $3.5 million 

for 2023, anticipating fall of 2022 construction costs of $3.5 million. 

• Emergency generator power at Pump Station 1 and Nunn pump Station projects cost of 

$250,000. 

• Greeley and North Weld Interconnect projected cost of $3 Million.  

• AWIA additional security and SCADA power upgrades projected cost $100,000. 

• Tank Rehabilitation Projects Tank 5 and Tank 7 projected cost of $1.6 million. 

• Tank 1C Design and Construction project cost of $7 million with 2025 construction. 

• Tank 1 16-inch distribution pipeline upsizing project projected start 2024 total project cost of 

approximately $20 million.  

• Weld County Transmission Line to Tank 1 Site project start 2024 project cost of $8 million. 

• Summit View Pump Station Upgrade project start 2026 projected cost of $4 million. 

Raw Water Projects for 2023  

• Raw water district drought supply acquisition project projected at $9 million.  

• Water Supply and Storage Company Structures projected cost of $50,000. 

• Larimer #2 Headgate Project Overland Ponds projected cost of $200,000. 

• Pleasant Valley Pipeline sedimentation basin project projected cost of $312,000. 

• Reservoir Pumping Costs of $200,000. 

• Legal and Engineering cost of approximately $200,000. 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

Master Planning and Policy  

• Regional Master Plan  

o Capacity Sale Caps for Wholesale Accounts, Evaluate and Revise Water Service 

Agreements.  

o Capacity Limits for Commercial Accounts, Evaluate and Revise Water Service 

Agreements.  

o Tap Sale Limits on Residential Taps, Evaluate and Revise Water Service Agreements.   

o Revised Capital Improvement Projects Program. 

• Cost of Service Study finalized 2023 dependent on Revised Water Service Agreement.  

• System Pressurization Study for analyses pressurization of the transmission system at the 

treatment plant to be managed by SCWTA. 

• Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Expansion Study to be managed by SCWTA projected at $50,000 for 

2023. 

• Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Master Plan to be managed by SCWTA projected at $500,000 for 

2023. 

 

The District competed the following capital improvement projects in 2022: 

• Solider Canyon Treatment Plant Upgrade to 60 MGD. 

• Line 1 replacement project and upsizing.  

• Pump Station 1 upgrade. 

• Old Eaton Pipeline bypass, line replacement and upsizing. 

• Emergency Backup Power Summit View. 

• Emergency Power SCADA. 

• Start Buss Grove Interconnect. 

• Start Greeley NW Interconnect. 

• Start Construction NEWT III Transmission Line.  

• Start Construction Eaton Pipeline Project Phase 2. 

• Acquisition of Knox Pit Reservoir Project - Overland Ponds. 

• Acquisition of Water Rights.  

 

Over the course of the previous 4 years the District has acquired over 1,300 acre-feet of new water 

supplies at a cost of approximately $49,000,0000, averaging $41,000 per acre-foot, constructed 

approximately $41,000,000 of system improvements, averaging about $8.2 million annually to serve 

growth and maintain reliable service, has spent $47,000,000 in operations and maintenance (O&M), or 

about $9.4 million per year, has received $80,000,000 in operational revenue, has received $65,000,000 

in non-operation revenue, and has maintained approximately $10,000,000 in operational and 

replacement reserve funds. Specific projects include: 

• Eaton Pipeline Project Phase 1. 

• Pump Station Rebuild Summit View. 

• Pump Station Upgrade Station 4. 

• Pump Station Upgrade Station 6. 



4 
 

• Mason Street Interconnect City of Greeley. 

• Horse tooth Operation Project Hansen Pump Back Station. 

• Master Meters to Severance.  

• Master Meter to Windsor.  

• Nunn Pump Station Upsize and Replacement.  

• Wild wing Irrigation Raw Water Line. 

• Acquisition of River Bluffs Reservoir Storage Project. 

• Acquisition of Overland Ponds – Cell 5. 

• Adjudication and Development of Return Flow Structures for Native Rights.  

• 5- year CDPHE Sanitary Survey. 

• American Water Infrastructure Act Survey and Implemented the Response Recommendations.  

• Mill Levy Ballot Initiative.  

The District over the course of 4 years has developed or modified approximately 20 policies, and 

updated manuals and protocols related to updated design criteria, maintenance program, safety, 

employment manuals and polices, development review procedures, drought triggers, finance and 

reserve fund policies, regulatory compliance manual and policies related to back flow and cross 

connection devices, board of director manual and plant investment and water dedication policies. 

The following are considered by District Management to be key policy changes that have had significant 

impact on maintaining district solvency: 

• Finance Policies for Reserve and Depreciation Funds.  

• Elimination of the Conservation Blue Tap Program. 

• Raw Water Dedication Policy Change from 100% Cash in Lieu to 100% Raw Water Dedication. 

• Drought Trigger Policies and Surcharges. 

• Flow Control Program for Commercial Customers.  

• Mortarium Policies Temporarily Limiting New Growth.  

• Elimination of the Water Allocation and Plant Investment Reinvestment Program.  

 

 

Management recommends the following  

1.  a 7% rate increase  

2. Increasing the plant investment fee to reflect the Honey Creek recommendation of $20,250 per 

PI not including distance fee 

3. Increasing CIL to $73,500  

4. Conducting an assessment of current PI surcharge fee to reflect  the increase in capital 

improvement costs as described in the Honey Creek memo.  

 

 

 



5 
 

 

2023 Budget and Forecast

North Weld County Water District

Forecasts

2022 budget 2022 Forecast 2023 Budget 2024 2025 2026 2027

Revenues
Total Operating Revenue 16,433,340$       21,802,000$       18,189,459$       19,512,823$       20,932,868$       22,456,656$         24,091,762$          

Debt Proceeds 38,000,000$       34,615,000$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                      

Total Non-Operating Revenue 184,009$            800,000$            185,081$            186,175$            187,291$            188,429$              189,590$               

Total Contributions 2,157,808$         7,221,000$         4,174,964$         4,492,463$         4,510,313$         4,528,519$           4,547,089$            

Total Revenues 56,848,570$       64,438,000$       22,624,387$       24,267,842$       25,708,380$       27,253,069$         28,909,496$          

Expenditures
Administrative 1,816,621$         2,011,000$         2,147,230$         2,300,300$         2,355,912$         2,412,925$           2,471,375$            

Operational 7,134,738$         7,500,000$         7,165,217$         7,184,582$         6,991,158$         7,176,356$           7,277,110$            

Debt Service 3,238,288$         3,300,000$         5,127,288$         4,420,825$         4,421,488$         4,416,925$           4,422,250$            

Water Enterprise Fund 2020 Bond 477,288$            477,288$            473,288$            474,175$            474,838$            470,275$              475,600$               

Capital Improvements 26,615,700$       12,400,000$       28,239,700$       24,360,500$       23,815,396$       15,820,390$         12,325,484$          

Total Expenditures 38,805,347$       25,688,288$       42,679,435$       38,266,208$       37,583,954$       29,826,596$         26,496,219$          

Earnings 18,043,223$       38,749,712$       (20,055,048)$      (13,998,366)$      (11,875,574)$      (2,573,526)$          2,413,278$            

Funds Available (carry over prior to depreciation) 36,669,174$       61,110,964$       40,227,855$       25,384,868$       12,647,778$       9,195,507$           10,712,465$          

Depreciation 828,061$            828,061$            844,622$            861,515$            878,745$            896,320$              914,246$               

Funds Available 38,841,114$       60,282,903$       39,383,233$       24,523,353$       11,769,033$       8,299,187$           9,798,219$            

Reserve Fund -$7 million 7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$           7,000,000$            

Fund Avaialble minus reserve fund 31,841,114$       53,282,903$       32,383,233$       17,523,353$       4,769,033$         1,299,187$           2,798,219$            

Depreciation Reserve Fund 3,857,124$         3,857,124$         4,685,185$         5,529,807$         6,391,322$         7,270,067$           8,166,387$            



City Council Work Session Agenda Item Summary – City of Fort Collins Page 1 of 5 

 

 August 8, 2023 

 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
ITEM SUMMARY 
City Council 

 

STAFF 

Jen Dial, Water Resources Manager 
Jason Graham, Director of Water Utilities 
Lance Smith, Utilities Finance Director 

SUBJECT FOR DISCUSSION 

Water Supply Requirement and Excess Water Use Fee Increase. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As prices continue to rise for water supplies and the infrastructure to support them, Fort Collins Utilities 
(“Utilities”) determined it needed to re-examine its Water Supply Requirement (“WSR”) and Excess Water 
Use (“EWU”) fees. The WSR and EWU fees do not apply to customers or developers served by other 
water districts. 

Based on a detailed consultant recalculation and recommendation, staff is proposing to increase fees 
substantially from $68,200 per acre-foot to $179,500 per acre-foot for the WSR, and $16.67 per 1,000 
gallons to $43.87 per 1,000 gallons for EWU. These fee increases will apply to both commercial and 
residential development and redevelopment, as well as existing commercial customers with a water 
allotment who incur an EWU charge. These fees do not apply to redevelopment unless there is an 
increase in water service.  

These fees will go to Council for approval in November with implementation on January 1. However, 
given the significant increase, we would like to consider options to help customers adjust to and pay for 
the increased fees. 

GENERAL DIRECTION SOUGHT AND SPECIFIC QUESTIONS TO BE ANSWERED 

1. Does Council have any questions regarding the need and evaluation of WSR and EWU fees?  

2. Does Council have any specific direction for outreach and implementation of the WSR and EWU fee 
increases? 

Page 106

 Item 2.



City Council Work Session Agenda Item Summary – City of Fort Collins Page 2 of 5 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION 

Due to the scarcity of water in Northern Colorado, coupled with rising demands, water’s cost has increased 
significantly. Additionally, storage project costs have continued to increase due to permitting and 
construction costs. In November 2022, the cost estimate for the Halligan Water Supply Project was 
projected at almost double the cost estimated in 2019. These combined increases prompted staff to 
reevaluate the WSR methodology and fee structure once again. Because the EWU fee is increased by the 
same percentage as the WSR, the EWU fee was also recalculated.  

It is best practice to reevaluate WSR fees a minimum of every 2 years. WSR fees offset the costs to Utilities 
to provide new customers with water in perpetuity and assure development pays its own way when 
connecting to Utilities water service. This helps avoid impacts to current Utilities customers.  

If allotment customers use more water than their tap is allocated annually, they pay EWU fees. This covers 
the cost for water above and beyond their allocation.  

WSR FEE CALCULATION 

In early 2022, Utilities hired FCS Group to evaluate the WSR methodology and fee. The evaluation is 
specific to WSR which then determines how EWU fees are calculated. There are three ways the WSR 
(also referred to as ‘cash-in-lieu’ for some water providers) can be calculated: buy-in, incremental, or 
combined approach. FCS Group recommended Utilities use a ‘combined approach’ that considers the cost 
of the existing and future water supply system (infrastructure and water rights).  

The cost of existing infrastructure is not included in the WSR calculation because the City’s current 
infrastructure needs to be expanded to be able to serve future customers. Therefore, it’s included in future 
water supply system costs. The WSR calculation includes the cost of future infrastructure (Halligan 
Reservoir expansion and capital improvement projects to expand the system’s capacity), market value of 
existing water rights, and market value of expected future water rights acquisitions. This total cost is then 
divided by the firm yield of the water rights portfolio, which results in a cost of $179,500/acre-foot to serve 
future development. 

It is recommended to use the ‘firm’ yield (which is the current method), as opposed to ‘average’ yield. Firm 
yield is the amount of water the City can depend on assuming a 50-year drought. Firm yield is contingent 
on storage and infrastructure to capture and deliver those water rights. For example, the firm yield with the 
current Halligan Reservoir is much less than with an enlarged Halligan Reservoir because there is not the 
ability to capture water rights during high flows and store it for use during future droughts.  

The following graph illustrates the cost comparison per acre-foot in WSR compared to other water 
providers in the region. 

Page 107

 Item 2.



City Council Work Session Agenda Item Summary – City of Fort Collins Page 3 of 5 

 

While the City’s proposed fee would be the highest in the region, these comparisons are not apples to 
apples because there is not a consistent methodology used among water providers. Additionally, each 
water provider has a different dedication requirement. For instance, the City requires 0.31 acre-feet per 
four-bedroom single-family home, which equates to $53,850 per residence. Fort Collins-Loveland Water 
District requires 0.80 acre-feet for a similar home, which equates to $110,000 per residence. (The graph 
below illustrates a comparison of the cost for a four-bedroom, 5,200 square foot outdoor area residence.) 
This discrepancy also applies to commercial developments.  

 

Page 108

 Item 2.



City Council Work Session Agenda Item Summary – City of Fort Collins Page 4 of 5 

IMPACTS 

The WSR fee increase will impact development, redevelopment, and existing customers but to different 
extents. Because there is not much developable land left within the Utilities water service area, there is 
likely to be less impact to new development. According to the 2017 Fort Collins City Plan Trends and 
Forces Report, approximately 25% of the new development that will occur within the Growth Management 
Area will be within Utilities service area, with the remaining 75% serviced by surrounding water districts. 
Currently, there are 821 developers in some phase of the development review process that could be 
financially impacted if they are not able to pay their WSR ahead of January 1, 2024. 

Redevelopment is expected to continue and will also be impacted by an increase to WSR fees. Particularly 
in Downtown, near Colorado State University, and along the College Avenue corridor, there are 
opportunities for infill and redevelopment expected in the coming years, but the exact amount is unknown 
at this time.  

As for EWU charges, up to 260 customers per year have paid those fees since 2012. This amounts to 
between $500,000-$1.7 million in annual collection. The number of customers is not expected to change 
unless the City sees more customers deciding to increase their allotment by paying an additional WSR. 
While customers have the option to pay a WSR fee to increase their allotment, many find it more financially 
feasible to pay a smaller annual EWU fee than a large one-time WSR fee. With increasing WSR costs, it 
is unknown how that might change. 

The WSR and the EWU fees ensure that the Water Utility is not burdening the existing rate payers with 
the cost of new development. For Affordable Housing, any subsidy would require the Water Utility to be 
fairly compensated. 

NEXT STEPS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

Water is expensive and rising costs are outside the City’s control. The population in Fort Collins is expected 
to continue to grow and Utilities is charged with finding a way to pay for future water demands. If developers 
are not required to pay the market cost of the water rights and infrastructure needed to provide service for 
future customers, these costs would inequitably fall on existing customers. Therefore, staff recommends 
implementing the proposed $179,500 per acre-foot WSR fee and $43.87 per 1,000 gallons EWU fee 
starting January 1, 2024.   

Options for implementation include: 

 Move forward with staff recommendation at projected pace and implement fees January 1, 2024.  

 Evaluate different payment options for: 

o Current development review customers  

o Small businesses 

o Most marginalized customers 

o Affordable housing development 

 Enhance conservation programs to help offset the price of water. 

o Xeriscape Incentive Program (XIP) which assists customers in removing grass for more native 
plants that decrease water demand in the long term. 

o Allotment Management Program (AMPP) provides eligible Utilities customers with a temporary 
waiver from their EWU fees if they meet certain qualifications. 

 

Page 109

 Item 2.



City Council Work Session Agenda Item Summary – City of Fort Collins Page 5 of 5 

Given the substantial increase to the WSR and EWU fees, staff acknowledges the importance of 
communication and engagement with Council, Boards and Commissions, the community, and internal 
colleagues. 
 
Staff intends to: 

 Meet with internal staff, Water Commission, Planning and Zoning Commission, Chamber of 
Commerce, Economic Advisory Board, and Development Review Executive Team (mid-August - 
early October). 

 Email developers with projects in the development review process and assist in their payment of WSR 
ahead of the fee increase (August). 

 Email customers who have incurred EWU charges so they can consider paying a WSR to increase 
their allotment (August - September). 

 Fort Shorts e-newsletter (internal staff) (August). 

 Update City website (August). 

 Lunch and Learn or Open House for development community (October). 

 Communicate with the Affordable Housing Board and Building Review Commission (September). 

 City News e-newsletter (September). 

 Building Services e-newsletter (September). 

 Fort Collins Area Chamber of Commerce e-newsletter (September/October). 

ATTACHMENTS  

1. Presentation 

Page 110

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

Utilities Water Director

Jason Graham

Water Supply 

Requirements and 

Excess Water Use 

Fee Updates

August 8, 2023

Jen Dial

Utilities Water Resource ManagerPage 111

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

2

Agenda

• Purpose

• Water Supply Requirements (WSR) 

and Excess Water Use (EWU) fees

• Evaluation

• Frequently Asked Questions

• Outreach

• Options and Considerations

• Recommendation

• Discussion

Page 112

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

3

Purpose

• Share with City Council the need for WSR and EWU fee increases.

• Does Council have any questions regarding the need and evaluation of WSR 

and EWU fees?

• Does Council have any specific direction for outreach and implementation of 

the WSR and EWU fees?

Page 113

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HerePurpose

4

• Utilities has been developing and 
maintaining a high-quality water system for 
nearly 150 years. 

• Our innovative and forward-thinking 
approach has provided reliable water for our 
community.

• Currently we are focused on: 

• Taking care of our existing system

• Water quality and conservation

• Regulations

• Climate resiliency (drought, water 
scarcity, historic weather events)

Page 114

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

5

Purpose

• The market cost of water continues to significantly 

increase:

• Scarcity of water in the West

• Competition for limited water resources

• Storage project costs continue to increase:

• Permitting process

• Construction costs

• Development pays its own way which prevents 

impacts to existing customers
Page 115

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereWhat is an Acre-Foot (AF)?

6

• An AF of water equals about 326,000 gallons, or enough water to cover a 

football field 1-foot deep.

• One acre-foot can supply water to 3-4 single-family homes in Fort Collins per 

year.

Page 116

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

7

WSR and EWU Fees

WSR Fee

• New development and re-

development

• One-time fee per AF

• Buys into the current value of 

Utilities’ water portfolio, in exchange 

for water service in perpetuity

EWU Fee

• Annual fee for commercial allotment 

customers 

• Fee per 1,000 gallons over 

assigned allotment

Page 117

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

Growth Management Area 

(GMA)

Fort Collins Utilities

ELCO Water District
Fort Collins

Fort Collins-Loveland Water 

District

West Fort Collins Water District

WSR and EWU Applicability

8

~11,000 

Fort Collins 

Residents

~137,000 Fort Collins 

Residents

~24,000 Fort Collins 

Residents

Page 118

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereEvaluation

9

• Hired FCS Group and West Water 

Consultants to evaluate

• Colorado-Big Thompson Project 

(C-BT) prices increased 52x in 30 

years while inflation increased 2x.

• Non-C-BT water rights costs have 

increased as well ~143,000 AF

• Last significant increase was 2021 

($22,145 to $68,200)

• Halligan Reservoir expansion costs 

have almost doubled since 2019

• Should evaluate a minimum of every 

two years

 $-

 $20,000.00

 $40,000.00

 $60,000.00

 $80,000.00

 $100,000.00

 $120,000.00

 $140,000.00

 $160,000.00

 $180,000.00

Fort Collins WSR vs. C-BT 
Cost per AF

WSR C-BT

Page 119

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

10

Evaluation

Water 
Rights

• Must expand current water storage to 
fully capture current rights

• Expansion of Halligan

Water 
Storage

• Equates to $179,500 / AF from water 
economics standpoint

WSR 
Fee

• 30,160 AF, valued at $5.1 billion

• 8% available for future growth

• Expansion of portfolio planned

+

Page 120

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

11

Evaluation

Page 121

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

12

Evaluation 

$0 $20,000 $40,000 $60,000 $80,000 $100,000 $120,000

Loveland

Greeley

Longmont

Johnstown

Fort Collins - Proposed

Broomfield

East Larimer County

Fort Collins-Loveland

Residential Property Fees

4 BR Single-Family

7,300 SF Lot 

Provider

Dedication 

Required (AF)

Fort Collins-Loveland 0.80

ELCO 0.58

Broomfield 0.50

Fort Collins 0.31

Johnstown 0.50

Longmont 0.76

Greeley 0.50

Loveland 0.45

Page 122

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

13

Evaluation

Page 123

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

14

Evaluation

$0 $100,000 $200,000 $300,000 $400,000

Longmont

Loveland

Fort Collins-Loveland

East Larimer County

Greeley

Fort Collins - Proposed

Broomfield

Commercial Property Fees - Restaurants

Provider

Dedication 

Required (AF)

Broomfield 3.52

Fort Collins 1.76

Greeley 2.31

ELCO 0.79

Ft. Collins – Loveland 0.70

Loveland 1.00

Longmont 0.76

Restaurant Business

4,000 SF

¾” Meter Tap

Page 124

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

15

Frequently Asked Questions

• Does the City plan to purchase more water rights?

• Yes, the City is always evaluating potential water rights purchases to expand our portfolio for growth.

• Are the fees increasing to pay for the Halligan Water Supply Project?

• No, the need to increase the fees exists regardless of Halligan. Halligan is only ~8% of our total 
water portfolio value.

• What do we expect for future water costs?

• We expect water rates to continue to go up.

• What have you heard from stakeholders?

• Internal stakeholders and existing customers have expressed concerns with the rapid increase in 
cost impacting their ability to do business, especially for affordable housing and small businesses.

• How is this related to the water adequacy code updates?

• WSR relates to our water rights and storage for customers in Utilities’ service area. Water adequacy 
determination ensures a water provider can deliver reliable and safe water to their customers.

Page 125

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereOutreach - Inform

16

• Email allotment 

customers

• Email developers 

in review 

process

• Post notice on 

Utilities’ website

• Water Commission 

presentation

• Planning and 

Zoning 

Commission

• Chamber of 

Commerce

• Economic Advisory 

Board 

Development 

Review Executive 

Team

completed 3rd and 4th Quarter 2023

• Communicate with 

Affordable Housing 

Board and Building 

Review 

Commission

• Lunch and Learn • Internal and 

external e-

newsletters

Page 126

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereRecommendation

17

• Increase WSR fees from $68,200 to $179,500 per AF starting January 1, 2024.

• Increase EWU fees from $16.67 to $43.87 per 1,000 gallons starting January 1, 

2024.

Page 127

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereOptions and Considerations

18

1. Move forward with staff recommendation at projected pace and implement 

fees January 1, 2024.

2. Evaluate different payment options for:

• Current development review customers

• Small businesses

• Most marginalized customers

• Affordable housing development

3. Enhance conservation programs to help offset the price of water.

Page 128

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

19

Discussion

• Does Council have any questions regarding the need and evaluation of WSR 

and EWU fees?

• Does Council have any specific direction for outreach and implementation of 

the WSR and EWU fees?

Page 129

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

20

• End of End of presentation-start of back slides of 

Presentation-Back-Back up

Page 130

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereImpacts by Customer

21

• New Development

• ~25% will occur in the Utilities service area

• Developers currently in the development review process that would be affected

• Re-development

• Infill and redevelopment with an increase in water service

• Expected, but exact amount unknown

• Existing Customers with Allotments

• Up to 260 customers/year have paid EWU fees since 2016 

⎻$500,000 to $1.7 million annual collection

• Could purchase additional WSR to avoid
Page 131

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereOptions and Considerations

22

• Discuss developing a program or rate structure to address impacts to most 

marginalized customers, such as affordable housing and small businesses

• Expand or modify existing water conservation programs such as:

• Allotment Management Program (AMP) which provides eligible customers 

with a temporary EWU waiver if they meet certain qualifications

• Xeriscape Incentive Program (XIP) which assists customers in removing 

grass for more native plants that decrease water demand in the long term

Page 132

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes Here

23

History and Water Story

19th

Century
Settlement in 

Northern Colorado

Ditches, streams, 
canals – water and 

wastewater

Fires lead to first 
Municipal Water Works

20th

Century
Regulations

Water resources and 
infrastructure 

acquisition

Federal funding

Michigan Ditch, Joe 
Wright Reservoir

Horsetooth and C-BT

Treatment Facilities

21st

Century
Asset management

Water quality and 
conservation

Regulations

Climate resiliency

Regional partnerships

One Water

Federal funding

Page 133

 Item 2.



Headline Copy Goes HereProposed Fee

24

Page 134

 Item 2.


	1. 	Call to Order2.	 Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest 
	3.  August 14, 2023, NWCWD Board Meeting Agenda
	4.	 Public Comment 
	5.	 Consent Agenda
	5a.  	Minutes from July 17, 2023, Meetings
	5b. 	Unaudited Financials for July 2023
	5c.  	Invoices through August 14, 2023 
	5d.  	Greeley and NW Harmony Interconnect Pump Station Purchase Contract  
	5e. 	Element WSSC Change Case No.1 Task Order No. 4  
	5f.  	Stantec Master Plan Change Order 1 
	5g.  	Honey Creek Resources Cost of Service and Finance Model Update Scope
	5h.  	Ditesco Services Scope of Services NEWT III Construction Management 
	5i.  	BPCCC Variance Request 
	5j.  	Easement Agreements
	i.  Overland Ponds Mark Linder Pond 1 
	ii.   	AB Property – NEWT III 

	5k.  	Nickel Road Mineral Lease Agreement 

	6.  Town Mayor and Manager for the Town of Eaton Discussion on Future Water Service in Relation to 2nd Treatment Plant and NWCWD 
	7.  Variance Request Related to Development Review for the Ridge Commercial Development 
	8.  Executive Session 
	9.  District Manager's Report 

	topmostSubform[0]: 
	Page1[0]: 
	f1_1[0]: 
	f1_2[0]: 
	FederalClassification[0]: 
	c1_1[0]: Off
	c1_1[1]: Off
	c1_1[2]: Off
	c1_1[3]: Off
	c1_1[4]: Off
	c1_1[5]: Off
	f1_3[0]: 
	c1_1[6]: Off
	f1_4[0]: 

	Exemptions[0]: 
	f1_5[0]: 
	f1_6[0]: 

	Address[0]: 
	f1_7[0]: 
	f1_8[0]: 

	f1_9[0]: Nickel Road Development LLC44 Cook Street, Suite 705Denver, CO 80206
	f1_10[0]: 
	SSN[0]: 
	f1_11[0]: 
	f1_12[0]: 
	f1_13[0]: 

	EmployerID[0]: 
	f1_14[0]: 
	f1_15[0]: 





